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For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=tT—-HLHEE

2012 2011
—E-C—F —F——% Change
HK$’000 HK$'000 bof)
FET FHETT %
Revenue g 12,374,379 10,503,988 +17.8
Gross profit E A 1,556,853 1,309,694 +18.9
Profit for the year attributable to NAFHA AENL
owners of the Company REE R 710,261 380,759 +86.5
EBITDA ST E R AT 1,618,612 1,248,134 +29.7
EPS (HK cents) FRRAF (BW)
- Basic and diluted — AR EE 25.67 13.76 +86.6
DPS (HK cents) (Remark 1) TR B GBAL) (BI7E1)
— Interim —HH 5 3 +66.7
~ Final —RHA 5 25 +100.0
- Full year —2fF 10 55 +81.8
Remark 1: BisEq

The interim dividends in aggregate of 5 HK cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$138,288,000 of which HK$41,521,000 and HK$55,295,000
were paid in 2012 and HK$41,472,000 were payable in 2013 to shareholders on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business on 19 June 2012,
29 October 2012 and 28 January 2013, based on 2,768,037,398, 2,764,773,398
and 2,764,773,398 ordinary shares in issue respectively.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5 HK cents (2011: 2.5
HK cents) per share for the year ended 31 December 2012, based on ordinary
shares in issue (number of ordinary shares issued at 28 February 2013:
2,766,273,398), to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members
on 27 May 2013 (Monday). It is expected that the final dividend payments will be
made to shareholders on 5 June 2013, Wednesday, subject to the Company’s
shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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Basic earnings and dividends per share (HK cents)

BREFBAREE (GBAL)

HK cents
AL
s« MEPS BREF

W DPS i E 25.67
25

20

15 11.82 11.45

10.00
10

4.7 4.9 5.0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

The calculation of basic earnings per share and dividends per share for the year from 2008 to 2010 have been adjusted for the bonus issued
and the share subdivision that have been approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 January 2071.
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Analysis of EBITDA, gross, operating and net profit margins (%)
BEMERBHEAFEE  ERR - KEBRFRURMAFED (%)
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Financial Highlights
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Turnover by geographical segments
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The Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Truly International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) started to break
the HK$10 billion revenue mark in 2011 and reached HK$12.4 billion
in 2012, a rather marvelous 17.8% year on year progress.

Since 2010 the Company has achieved a double digit revenue growth
every year mainly due to the successful gain of market share in the
sustained global growth of the smartphone, particularly in PRC.
Truly’s advanced HD/3D LCD, super slim Capacitive Touch Panel
and high resolution Compact Camera Module are the three essential
parts of this indispensable tool of mankind. Our superb quality, huge
production capacity and advanced design ensure penetration and
leadership in the smartphone supply chain arena. Industry consensus
reveals that world smartphone marketplace in 2013 & 2014 will
remain powerful and become ever technologically advanced. | am
therefore optimistic for another year of double digit revenue growth in
2013.

However, growth in revenue must be complimented by improvement
in profitability. This is our next immediate job.

A less noted business division in the Company has been lighted up
alongside the corona of the shining smartphone division; and is fast
glowing in its own brightness. Truly is a leading supply partner of
primary LCD products (for new car assembly) to nearly all car makers
around the world. The gross margin of the automotive division is
above average in the group, given the long term mutual partnership
commitment, stringent delivery and exhaustively quality demands of
the industry. The revenue of this division will continue to grow in 2013
and will support improving the profit margins of the Company.

Truly has engaged in flat panel display industry for more than 21
years and been keeping on injecting tremendous resources into
research and development. We have now successfully leaped into the
“smart and intelligent display” arena. The Company will focus to
pioneer the applications of all the technologies of this smart and
intelligent display in smartphone, smart TV, smart car, smart home
and smart medic-care devices. With the strong sales of high-end
smartphone parts amid a well managed factory overhead cost and
increasing delivery of better margined primary automotive LCD
products, 2013 should be the start of a profit margin rebound cycle
for the Company.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$710 million, which has been increased significantly
by 86.5% when compared to year 2011 (HK$381 million) mainly due
to increase in turnover and significant decline in the value of available
for sale investment not being recurred in 2012.

EABEEERAT(TAQT ) —E——FHKE
W00 BB TN EIEE  WHR 2T —ZFEE
124 B8 » IRFIBRA17.8% » KELK -

ARAE —E-TFEESFHRFEU B RIE
£ TEOARAETETFERMSENFESIER (L
HEAERE) RRINENTISNE - EHTENS
BAUBRGBRERE  BEBTERRLRSR
GEMUAREEARZ AR TR TANZIA
BEZF - RSB ME k8RN EER
BRHREREFIZEAT TR EREE
WA BRAEISREMA - ER AL
RPARREETFEMBR _FT—=FR=-F N
FREMEERR - FROTERMTEER - Bt -
AANHE_Z—=FEBS—FEUHBUKRSER
TR -

A WEERORE - BEFRITBNEES - 1k
THERFI T — AR TAE

ARB—ANERTERNER  SESRTH
FEEDBRONE NEAKE - FREER-
EMREZIRBAREMD E mE R RE R R BER
REMNEEHER - AREP BERARBAG
VTIRERBERMEERH  BENNERKE
KR mERE - SHEBRAREE P ENE
BN~ BH T -=FEBREHEL
Tt APREARBNERNEK -

ARRAFPEABTRELBEN FARFERARNEE
RAETTRHRIE - KIIWER TR [EERR] A
HEBE - ARBARKGEINEEER SR
BEREMARLSEETH - EEER - B 1E
BEERE - DREBERFRETERTRRER

RAEHEABERFEE BN ATA0EET -
B_E——FQG81ESITL)EE LFA86.5% £
DRHAREEEEMEAERIEREBENR T
——FWEBEARR K-
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would take this opportunity to
thank our management team, all Board members and our staff for
their hard work and dedication. | would also like to express my
gratitude to our shareholders, business partners, and banks for their
continuous support to the Group.

Lam Wai Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWNE DN

Business Review and Award

Revenue for the year recorded a double digits growth of
approximately 17.8% amounting to around HK$12.4 billion (2011:
HK$10.5 billion), which was mainly due to the successful gain of
market share in the sustained global growth of the smartphone,
particular in PRC as mentioned in the Chairman’s statement. Profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$710 million which was approximately 86.5% more than the last
corresponding year in 2011 (approximately HK$381 million). The
gross profit margin for the year was increased to around 12.6%
(2011: 12.5%) and net profit margin for the year attributable to
owners of the Company increased to approximately 5.7% (2011:
3.6%). The management believes that the Group’s profit margins
could gradually be improved in 2013 by growth in revenue, the effect
of economic of scale and increasing sales volume of automotive
display products.

The Group’s LCD business including touch panel and automotive
display business was about 88.3% of the total revenue for the year.
Other businesses including the sales of compact camera modules
and printed circuit boards accounted for approximately 11.7% of the
Group’s revenue in 2012. The management believes that the
smartphone market would still keep hot in coming few years,
particular in PRC. Our major products would be continuously
benefited by this trend.

During past few years, the Group did not only focus on the production
but also spent a lot of resources on research and development
approximately HK$481 million and HK$377 million in 2012 and 2011
respectively. In respect of the LCD Products segment, a patented
project, “LCD device and its production methodology”, of one of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries, Truly Semiconductors Limited, was
elected by Guangdong Intellectual Property Office in January 2013 to
be one of the awardees of Year 2013 Guangdong Patent Outstanding
Award.

E 3 JE1) YN E

FR - WESFSELBEREN17.8%E 412418
BL(ZE——F 105EBTL) WHEEHR
N ERE EATMES e FH T IH N E 2 Bk
RLEREFRRH) PRINIENTSMHEME - F
NARRBIHEEABMMEF O AB7TA0EST & E
—FE T ——F(HI8IEBIT) B ML
86.5% ° AFEEFERARBHER AJEMAF
BEMEDR EFAELHI126%(ZF——F:
12.5%) M#95.7% (—ZF——F : 3.6%) - EEE
RE  FAEER-_ZTE—=-FrgBlaER #
BB s m AR AEENSER HEE EF
B REERFE -

AREEHLCOER (BE R MTER R %7%)
HFRBYEE488.3%  MEEHEAKREIRIE
BIREESHMRBAGARE —F— —F il
WNT7% - BEEERR  BEFHEMISRARRE
FREBBZEE(CLERETR)  MAKEZ
IZEMBRHEXENLBE -

PRBEBFR  AEBTERINEE @ TFRN
REERRMETH R_T——FR-F——
FNRIREXNABIEETRIT7TEBTT - Bk
BIBE@mORBIE R_T—=F—A &%
BN ERRENFERERAR ZEH
A NRSEBREKE RENIETE ] BERE M#
EERTER201BFERENEFEFE 2 — -
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Management Discussion and Analy

BEEWR DT

e

Segment Information

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of performance focuses on the sales of
different type of products. Inter-segment sales are charged at

ARARBEFTS (AERLERRE) READE
BREFERROBREEHET R T RERER
MHE - D BRREEETIRRITMESH - Fit
AEBEBROAMEZSESE  NHERABR

prevailing market rates. Thus the Group is currently organised into  REEMMEFHEESR - SKL0EMNER N
two operating segments which are sales of LCD products and | :

electronic consumer products. The information of each operating

segment is as follows:

manufacture and distribution of LCD
products and touch panel products

LCD products - DERDHEBRREER

R an M BB YRR EE

BB SREM -

Electronic consumer -
products

manufacture and distribution of BEFEEBEESL
electronic consumer products such
as compact camera module, personal

an () 40 BB AR 48
M EARRE®RR

health care products and electrical FFHE)

devices
Segment revenues and results SHEWENEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AREEZKS RREDBE D OWZEI R EEDIT
operating and reportable segments: T

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE—FT——F+_A=+—HIFFE

LCD Electronic
products consumer Segment

R products total  Eliminations Consolidated
BTHRER ETHEER PEEE B e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TEx

REVENUE g
External sales AN 10,930,123 1,444,256 12,374,379 - 12,374,379
Inter-segment sales HERHEE - 399,400 399,400 (399,400) -
10,930,123 1,843,656 12,773,779 (399,400) 12,374,379

RESULT ES |
Segment result GEES 1,014,947 109,684 1,124,631 (16,588) 1,108,043
Finance costs BSER (72,646)
Unallocated expenses FOEAZ (51,605)
Profit before tax R A 983,792

10 Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

For the year ended 31 December 2011 ' r o E——fFf - A=+ —HIFFE
LCD Electronic
products consumer Segment
R AmEE products total Eliminations ~ Consolidated
BRsEm STHEEM NEEE 3k e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT THL THL
REVENUE [
External sales A 9,760,564 743,424 10,503,988 - 10,503,988
Inter-segment sales HREfREE - 409,057 409,057 (409,057) -
9,760,564 1,152,481 10,913,045 (409,057) 10,503,988
RESULT ES
Segment result DEEEE 838,488 38,353 876,841 (10,492 866,349
Impairment loss on AHHEREREESR
available-for-sale investment (106,026)
Finance costs BSEH (65,110)
Unallocated expenses APEEL (23,867)
Profit before tax A& A 671,346
Geographical information i & B R

The following table sets out information about (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers by location of customers and (i) the Group’s

non-current assets by location of assets.

Revenue from

external customers

TREIOAREREPAELE S BOINEE
P i es K i) A5 B B E T i 5 R H) SRR &)

Non-current assets

HEEF K FEREBERE
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
2012 2011 —E-——F —E——%F
—E-—F —2—% +=ZA=+—H +tZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FET FET

People’s Republic of HREE AR AN

China (“PRC”) ([ 8,030,613 7,270,648 5,021,071 4,700,796
South Korea [ 2,447,847 1,768,581 - -
Japan SN 466,296 387,028 - -
Hong Kong B 467,773 383,563 37,581 56,388
Europe BOM 374,302 275,684 - -
Others Hith 587,548 418,484 - 1
12,374,379 10,503,988 5,058,652 4,757,185

EAERERAT o

—T-—FFR 11



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWR DT

Outlook

Looking forward to 2013, the global economic conditions might be
improved but still challenging due to weakening US and unstable
European economies. The demand for LCD products including
smartphone would be unstable except PRC market because
consumers’ spending power might be weakened. However, we have
confidence to sustain a growth in 2013 as we believe that the
smartphone market would continue to grow in 2013 and expect PRC
smartphone market which would sustain significant growth in coming
few years.

The Group has been continuing to take actions on cost control and
inventory control to encounter unstable economy situation. The
Group would accelerate the production automation to reduce the
negative effect from continuing increase in China labour wages.

Marketing teams and production planning continues to be closely
integrated to work out the best costing structure to achieve the
optimal operating and financial results for the Group.

Financial Analysis

Investment, Assets and Liabilities

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to approximately HK$715 million and furniture, fixtures and equipment
amounting to approximately HK$108 million for the purpose of
enhancing its manufacturing capacity in the China factory campus.

Total assets were increased by approximately 14.7% to approximately
HK$11,587 million which comprised approximately HK$6,471 million
of current assets, approximately HK$4,893 million of property, plant
and equipment and approximately HK$223 million of other non-
current assets. Total liabilities were approximately HK$6,447 million,
of which approximately HK$5,505 million were current liabilities and
approximately HK$942 million were non- current liabilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Revenue for the year were increased by approximately 17.8%. Profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company and earnings per
share were increased by approximately 86.5% and 86.6%
respectively.

12 Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWNE DN

As at 31 December 2012, the outstanding bank borrowings, net of
fixed deposits, cash and bank balances, were approximately
HK$1,716 million (2011: approximately HK$1,927 million). These
borrowings bear interest at prevailing market rate and their maturity
profiles are shown in the notes to the financial statements.

The financial position of the Group is still healthy and ready for future
capital expansion while keeping a sufficiently high level of fixed
deposits, cash and bank balances (approximately HK$1,439 million
at 31 December 2012) together with adequate unutilised banking
facilities. The gearing ratio based on total interest bearing debts, net
of fixed deposits, cash and bank balances was approximately 33.4%.

Capital expenditure of around HK$84 million for the year 2013 in
respect of acquisitions of property, plant and equipment was
authorized but not contracted for. Their expected sources of funding
will be principally from internal reserves.

General
The state of the Group’s current order books is very strong.

Except for investments in subsidiaries and available for sale
investments, neither the Group nor the Company had held any other
material investments during the year.

Additions to fixed assets mainly in furniture, fixture and equipment
and plant and machinery were approximately HK$883 million. As at
31 December 2012, the Group had no pledge or mortgage on its
fixed assets.

Around 20,000 workers and staff are currently employed in our Shan
Wei factory in China and around 100 personnel in the Group’s Hong
Kong office. Total staff costs for the year were approximately
HK$1,092 million.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the balance sheet
date and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates will be
considered to hedge, if any.

R-ZT——F+-_A=+—H KEERTEES
(B EHTER  BeRIRITET)HOAE17.161E
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BEAREERIFT BEFARE (IR T BER
e RRITHET)FTEHA33.4% -

RIZZE—=F BERNOBIBETZERLHE
RIEBEME  BELKE FHBECERE
BHARRIA) - TBHIE & HRKEERE AR
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AEERE 2RI EARNIFERE -

BRET B A RIRE AR ERES - AEERA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWR DT

Other Information

Dividends

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5 HK
cents (2011: 2.5 HK cents) per share for the year ended 31
December 2012, based on ordinary shares in issue (number of
ordinary shares issued at 28 February 2013: 2,766,273,398), to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members on
27 May 2013 (Monday). It is expected that the final dividend
payments will be made to shareholders on 5 June 2013, Wednesday,
subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

The interim dividends in aggregate of 5 HK cents per share (2011: 3
HK cents) were paid in 2012 and 2013 to shareholders on the register
of member of the Company at the close of business on 19 June
2012, 29 October 2012 and 28 January 2013, based on
2,768,037,398, 2,764,773,398 and 2,764,773,398 ordinary shares in
issue respectively.

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 39%.

Customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 36.3% of the total sales of the Group
and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 23.2% of the total purchases of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, our largest customer
accounted for approximately 12.6% of the total sales of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 14.1% of the total purchases of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2012, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

14 Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWNE DN

Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, aged 60, is the Chairman and Managing Director
of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and has over 36
years of experience in the electronics industry. He is primarily
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall strategic
planning and business development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 54, is an Executive Director of
the Company and the Chief Operating Officers of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group’s operations in respect of internal controls
and risk management, investors’ relationship and external affairs. He
joined the Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s LCD
products and other electronic components. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he had been the sales manager for a number of electronics
companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 49, is the Head of the Group’s LCD Production
Division and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li graduated
from the Jilin University of Technology and Engineering Management
in 1987 and joined the group in 1989. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in a multinational motor car manufacturer in Guangzhou City,
the PRC for almost two years.

Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 55, is an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Group’s Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a council
member of the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants.
Mr. Chung has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management and has been the independent Non-executive Director,
management consultant and Company Secretary of a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 54, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He is the holder of a Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip is
a CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER™ CFP® and a member of the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong. He is the Senior
Financial Planning Consultant of a professional insurance company in
Hong Kong. Mr. Ip is also an Accredited Mediator of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre.

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 64, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He has experience in textile industry.

Mr. Ma Wai Tong, aged 41, is the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Group and the Company respectively. Mr.
Ma joined the Group in January 2011 and had 16 years of auditing,
accounting and financing experience including four years with major
international accounting firms and over ten years in senior accounting
positions in various industries. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ma holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy and a Master’s degree of Professional
Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

By order of the Board
Lam Wai Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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Major Customers

The major customers of the Group are listed as follow:

Customer Categories

Smartphone/
Mobile phone

Automotive

Industrial/Medical

Consumables

Remark:  Major customers are listed above by categories in alphabetical order.

FERF
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Major Customer

BBK BEe Tk,
Coolpad MENE
Gionee

Huawei
K-touch
Samsung

TCL

ZTE

Calsonic Kansei BHEEEP
Continental
Delphi
DENSO
Nippon SEIKI
Panasonic
VALEO
Canon T¥ BEERP
Hexagon

KONICA MINOLTA

Mindray

Casio HBRERP
Sony
YAMAHA

EREF

L]
LY
GaAYA

L
KEEEE
B
BE
EESTS
T
EER

(EX:2

B TR
fIfEREgeE

S
=E
by

M D EBRPVRBENIRTFRIEFEES -

EAEBRAERAT « —T——_FFK 17



Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
liquid crystal display products and electronic consumer products
including compact camera module, personal health care products
and electrical devices.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 42.

Interim dividends in aggregate of 5 HK cents per share, amounting to
approximately HK$138,288,000, was paid and payable to the
shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5
HK cents per share based on the number of ordinary shares in issue
(number of ordinary share issued at 28 February 2013:
2,766,273,398) to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on 27 May 2013, amounting to
approximately HK$138,314,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to HK$715,096,000 and furniture, fixtures and equipment amounting
to HK$107,781,000 for the purpose of expanding its manufacturing
capacity in Shan Wei City, Guangdong Province in the People’s
Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the issued share capital of

the Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2012 were as follows:

ARz A DikEE

RoT——F+=A=+—A ARTASET
R AT -

2012 2011

—E—C—F —F—%F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Share premium R (B 545,520 549,156
Special reserve BRI 17,410 17,410
Retained earnings R & T 33,835 32,827
596,765 599,393

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles
of Association and provided that immediate following the distribution
or paying dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares of
these companies were acquired by the Company, and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Lam Wai Wah

Wong Pong Chun, James
Cheung Tat Sang

Li Jian Hua

Independent non-executive directors:
Chung Kam Kwong

Heung Kai Sing

Ip Cho Ting, Spencer

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Lam Wai Wah, Cheung Tat Sang and Wong Pong Chun,
James retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Other than those disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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EEZROREBERDERS

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares

At 31 December 2012, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

REZZ—=—F+=-A=+—H " BREAQRER
HH M HAERGI 2 352 TR T 2 B ae M ATac &% -
IR EMRAREZHITEFR HAZESTAD
BN AR REBHERSMERATZER
BERHEHBEABAE ZARNG REEEE®BZ K
M EAERDESDT

Long positions HE
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company (a) AAREREEO02EBTZEER

Percentage of

Number of issued the issued share

ordinary shares capital of
Name of director Capacity held the Company
e A=Y <oy LER NI A=Y - £6)
EEnE 4 ZER#E RAEBDL
%
Lam Wai Wah Beneficial owner 1,201,422,000 43.45
B EHEAA
Held by spouse (note 1) 74,844,000 2.71
mEcERA (1)
1,276,266,000 46.16
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 1,473,000 0.05
mHIE EmBAA
Held by spouse (note 2) 1,650,000 0.06
mECERA (HFE2)
3,123,000 0.11
Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 3,949,000 0.14
SRESE EmAA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 13,136,000 0.48
FEE ERBEAA
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(b)

22

Registered capital of the associated corporation of

the Company

Truly Opto-Electronics Limited (Note 3)

W

.\\\\\/55 7
fia9a
N - en e

-

km/h
o @ 8

Registered capital

(b) ARFEEEEZEMESR

FEAXRECLRE)BRD R (FHEES)

Percentage of
paid up registered
capital of Truly

Name of director Capacity contributed (USD) Shanwei

RHFMER HEFLEZ#Z

EEHE &4 (27) EMELBEDL

%

Lam Wai Wah Beneficial owner 94,500 0.1904
EE BEREAA

Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 378,000 0.7618
EHE EnEAA

Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 94,500 0.1904
SREA EnlAA

Li Jian Hua (note 4) Interest of corporation 94,500 0.1904

FEE (MEs)

controlled by the director

BEES OEERD

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012
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(c)

Notes:

Share options (c) HEAR#E
Number of Number of
Name of director Capacity options held underlying shares
EERE 514 iz BIRES B HEAR G A
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 48,950,000 48,950,000
=HE EnBEAA
Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 48,950,000 48,950,000
RIEA EmHEBA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 22,825,000 22,825,000
TR Em#AA
Held by spouse (note 5) 24,200,000 24,200,000
M ERA (FH5ES)
144,925,000 144,925,000
FI5E

Lam Wai Wah is deemed to be interested in 74,844,000 ordinary shares of
the Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Chung
King Yee, Cecilia.

Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 1,650,000 ordinary
shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse,
Lai Ching Mui, Stella.

Truly Opto-Electronics Limited, a company registered in the People’s
Republic of China, is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Registered capital contributed through Lhasa Development Zone Jianyuan
Investment Management Co., Ltd, a company wholly-owned by him.

Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 24,200,000 share options of the
Company, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2012.

1. MEERR ATEE 74,844,000 B EFRBERAE
ERHEZARNREBRERS -

2. =BG AR 1,650,000k ERBREETS
BH AR -

3. EFABCLUR)BRAR(RPEARENEZMZ
RFE) BARRZBEIFE2EWNBLAR -

4. FBHRREBECNERERRRREBEERA
AR Z EMER -

5. R E IR A A 24,200,000 A ER B EHRE
B 2 ANARI B -

B EXBEEIN  RZE——F+-_A=+—H"
FESHHBEARERA AR R SE AR5
R B Z AR KA AR D Z (R HER SRR -
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Share Options

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in

note 34 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share

options during the year:

B

340

Number of options

BRARBBRE S 2 FBEN P RRM T

TEREBARAZBRERFRAZES

BREEE
Outstanding at Exercised Outstanding at
Option type 1.1.2012 during year end of year
RN-Z——F REHK
R AEER —A—BHEKRITE FRTE i RATHE
Category 1: Directors
-8 E=
Wong Pong Chun, James 2003 24,200,000 - 24,200,000
=& 2006 24,750,000 - 24,750,000
Cheung Tat Sang 2003 24,200,000 - 24,200,000
RESE 2006 24,750,000 - 24,750,000
Li Jian Hua (Note) 2003 47,025,000 - 47,025,000
TR (M)
144,925,000 - 144,925,000

Note: Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 24,200,000 2003 shares options,

being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan.
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Category 2: Substantial shareholder
Other than the share options previously held by Lam Wai Wah, no
share option has been granted to other substantial shareholders.

BoE XERR
RMEEBERE ZBREN  ARRHMERE
i 3 AR RR TR A

Number of options

BREHR

Outstanding at Exercised Outstanding at
Option type 1.1.2012 during year end of year
R=-ZB—Z=fF RER
B IR R —A—BERTE FRITE 18 RAT 62
Category 3: Employees 2003 140,937,500 - 140,937,500
E=8: &R 2006 24,750,000 - 24,750,000
165,687,500 - 165,687,500

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures BERGHESR 2L H

Other than the share option schemes disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

B Ll BE 2 B AR AT &SN - AN A RIS EAE A
BARNFALE2EEM L BUEARFZ
EETEBWBARRREMEMEARR 2K
D RIEFFMEF 2 -
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the interests disclosed
above in respect of Lam Wai Wah, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital
of the Company.

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company

FERR
B EXFTIREARMEERA 2SI - REAN
NAERELZ MR EGROIEIBOHARTFIER

fFEEEMAmER RoE——F+-_A=+—
B TAREEMEARBERARNRRZE BT
R AR 2 BREER -

e

ANTEREE.02BITZEER

Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
iz B 81T AR ABRZE BT
REREE &4 ZREREE BABDL
%
Chan Kin Sun (note) Beneficial owner 158,950,000 5.75
BRE s (PR 5E) EHEAA
Held by spouse 54,208,000 1.96
MECERA
213,158,000 7.71

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are deemed to
be interested in 213,158,000 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2012.

Connected Transaction

On 15 November 2012, Truly Opto-Electronics Limited (“Truly
Shanwei”), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
registered in the PRC, entered into the Capital Increase Agreement
with the Investors in relation to their Investment into Truly Shanwei,
pursuant to which the registered capital of Truly Shanwei had been
increased from US$40,000,000 to US$44,962,500 by the addition of
new registered capital be subscribed for by the Investors, which
included the Directors, senior management of the Group and entities
beneficially owned by them and a widow of a late director of Truly
Shanwei. Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, the Investors
invested US$7,497,900 in aggregate into Truly Shanwei. The portion
of the registered capital of Truly Shanwei contributed by the Investors
is valued at US$4,962,500, which constitute 11.08370% of the
registered capital of Truly Shanwei as increased by the capital
increase pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, the investors shall pay
their respective amount in cash of which, at least 20% shall be paid
prior to obtaining the updated business license regarding the capital
increase and the remaining part shall be paid within six (6) months

RO EARZ -

after the issuance of the said business license.

The details of addition of new registered capital subscribed for by the

Investors are as follows:

RIFLEHE  REFEANRSXNESBEHKA
TR ERED20% AN IEE EEE # XK
BRAT S - T RIBREDG

RIEEE bl EHHR AR IR

BREEMBBIG M EMER ZFBOT -

Investor Relationship Consideration (USD)
REE 22RES KB (%)
Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited a wholly-owned subsidiary 2,566,800
ENEFERAE 2EKE AR
Hong Kong Truly International a wholly-owned subsidiary 2,249,400
Holdings Limited
ERGENBEERERAR 2EWBEAT
Lam Wai Wah an Executive Director and the controlling 142,800
shareholder of the Company
WEE WITEERA R AIIERKRR
Wong Pong Chun, James an Executive Director 571,300
"EHE WiITE=S
Cheung Tat Sang an Executive Director 142,800
RES WMITES
Lhasa Development Zone Jianyuan Interest of corporation controlled by the director 142,800
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*
HiERERERREETEER AR B EE S
Lhasa Development Zone Kaiyi Interest of corporation controlled by the director 87,300
Investment Management Co., Ltd.* of Truly Shanwei
NEREREIEREEEARAF BEANLEESES 2 EE#ER
Others Senior management of the Group and entities 1,594,700
beneficially owned by them and a widow of
a late director of Truly Shanwei
HAh, AEBEZEREBABURBEEEEIILE
—EEMEFECERERUECER
7,497,900
* Lhasa Development Zone Jianyuan Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (ff ~ * NEREZERERREETERRAR - —HHEARFH

EFERERIREEE AR Q) acompany wholly-owned by Li Jian Hua,

an executive Director of the company

# Lhasa Development Zone Kaiyi Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (HzF&
BRIEREETEAR AT, a company wholly-owned by Huang Yuxin, a

director of Truly Shanwei

TESFTEFE2ERE 2T

¢ UERZRIEREEERRAR - —HBEMILE
EEHEHNEEABEZAT

EAERERAT « —E——FFK 27



Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

The Directors consider that the Capital Increase Agreement will
enable Truly Shanwei to enhance and increase its capital base and
facilitate the Group to retain, attract or otherwise maintain on-going
relationships with the Directors and senior management of the Group
who are significant to the performance of the Group. Accordingly, the
Board considers that it is in the interests of the Group to enter into
the Capital Increase Agreement. The Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, consider that the Capital
Increase Agreement has been entered into on normal commercial
terms and the terms of the Capital Increase Agreement are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

For further details of the subscriptions by the Investors, please refer
to the Company announcement made on 15 November 2012.

The Directors confirm that the above transactions are connected
transactions of the Company which are the connected transactions
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would

oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Purchases, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year 2012, pursuant to the mandate to repurchase shares
of the Company obtained from the Company’s shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2012, the
Company repurchased an aggregate of 3,264,000 ordinary shares on
the Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$3,702,000 and all these shares were subsequently cancelled by
the Company and accounted for approximately 0.12% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2012.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Model Code

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company was not in the year
under review in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Audit Committee

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting matters and internal
controls. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee which
comprises all the three independent non-executive directors namely
Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, being the Chairman, Mr. Ip Cho Ting,
Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James,
an executive director, as members. They meet at least four times a
year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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Remuneration and Nomination Committees

The Company has a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination
Committee respectively which were established in accordance with
the relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees are
chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-executive
director and comprise three other members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting,
Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, being independent non-executive
directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an executive director of
the Company.

Corporate Governance

The Board considers that good corporate governance of the
Company is essential to safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders and enhancing the performance of the Group. The
Board is committed to maintain and ensure high standards of
corporate governance. We have complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices”
(effective until 31 March 2012) and the “Corporate Governance Code”
(newly effective from 1 April 2012) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, except
for a major deviation as below:

° Code Provision A.1.8 — An issuer has been required to arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential legal action
against its directors. With regular and timely communications
among the Directors and the management of the Group, the
management of the Group believes that all potential claims and
legal actions against the Directors can be handled effectively,
and the possibility of actual litigation against the Directors is
low. Nevertheless, the Board had arranged the appropriate
insurance coverage in December 2012.

o Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive are not separated and are performed by the same
individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Company. The Board considers that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the Company’s management and believes that this
structure will enable us to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.
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° Code Provision A.6.7 — Mr. Chung Kam Kwong and Mr. Heung
Kai Sing, independent non-executive directors of the Company,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 22 May 2012 due to prior business
commitment.

° Code Provision E.1.2 — The Chairman did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2012 due to
unexpected important business meeting.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a

proper and prudent manner. More details are contained in the
separate Corporate Governance Report on pages 32 to 39.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2012,

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$2,089,000.

Auditors
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Wah
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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Board of Directors and Board Committees

The Board

The Board was responsible for the Company’s corporate governance,
and was ultimately accountable for the Company’s activities,
strategies and financial performance.

The Board was mainly responsible for formulating and approving the
business strategies, objectives, policies and plans of the Company,
and monitoring the execution of the Company’s strategies. It was
also responsible for overseeing the operating and financial
performance of the Company and establishing appropriate risk
control policies and procedures in order to ensure that the strategic
objectives of the Company are materialized. In addition, the Board
was also responsible for improving the corporate governance
structure and enhancing communications with shareholders.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the execution of
strategies and decision-making for day-to-day operation of the
Company to the management team headed by the Managing
Director, Mr. Lam Wai Wah.

The management reported regularly to the Board on the operating
and financial performance of the Company. Development, expansion
and other major capital expenditure and commitment, as well as
major financing decisions were all reviewed and approved by the
Board.

Connections between members of the Board

None of the members of the Board have any connections (including
financial, business, family relationship and other material/related
relationships) with each other during the period under review.

Director’s dealing in securities

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with their obligations
regarding dealings in securities under the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules during the period under review.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term
but were subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.
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Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards his independence to
the Company and considered that each of the independent non-
executive Directors was independent to the Company during the
period under review.

Directors’ Training

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses. The Company has been
encouraging the directors to participate continuous professional
development courses and seminars organized by professional
institutions or professional firms and reading materials on relevant
topics so that they can continuously update and further improve their
relevant knowledge and skills.

In addition, the Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with written materials.

Board committees

The Board was supported by three Board Committees. Each Board
Committee has its own responsibilities, power and functions. The
chairman of the respective Board Committees reported to the Board
from time to time and made recommendations on matters discussed
when appropriate.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference, which
have been revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 pursuant to the
CG Code, setting out the Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties
and responsibilities are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong,
an independent non-executive director and comprise three other
members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing,
being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong Pong
Chun, James, an executive director of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure of the remuneration of the directors and senior management
and the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and
senior management. Details of the remuneration of each of the
directors for the year are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Three meetings were held during the year by the Remuneration
Committee to review the remuneration packages and assess the
performance of executive directors and the director’s fees of the
independent non-executive directors. All members of the
Remuneration Committee attended the said meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the nomination committee (the
Nomination Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee is governed by its terms of reference, which
have been revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 pursuant to the
CG Code, setting out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties
and responsibilities are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an
independent non-executive director and comprise three other
members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing,
being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong Pong
Chun, James, an executive director of the Company.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to any
proposed changes.

Three meetings were held during the year by the Nomination
Committee to review the nomination procedures and the current
composition of the Board. All members of the Nomination Committee
attended the said meeting.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee is governed by its terms of reference, which have been
revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 pursuant to the CG Code,
setting out the Audit Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non- BZZEZEE@REE - LB IEHITESER L
executive directors namely Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, being the 4 (ZE€xfE) EH=LEREMBLE(EE
Chairman, Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and @K &) MR ITES a4 (ZEEKE)
Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an executive director, as members. 4k - B EE @7 FEREATH NERAE
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide BB EHHREET M AEPELIE -

supervision over the Group’s financial reporting matters and internal

controls.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year. All members F R BEXEE@RITNAEE - 2EEXKE
of the Audit Committee attended the said meeting. e BB tiess o

‘U]]I]

The Board Meetings, Board Committees Meetings and E%%%% - EEEZEEERURRKREK
General Meeting

The Directors’ attendances at the Board Meetings, the Board Ef\ﬁzi_f‘f —“H+-_A=+t—HIFE B=F
Committees Meetings and General Meeting for the year ended 31 REFe g3 EFeZEeezURKREAS
December 2012 were as follows: ZEEERET

Number of meetings attended

HESERE
General

Board Board Committees Meeting

BE=g ExgZEg BREXE
Director Audit Remuneration = Nomination
5= B i RE
Executive directors:
HITES
Lam Wai Wah 16 n/a n/a n/a 0
R T EA T EA TEHA
Wong Pong Chun, James 18 4 3 3 1
mHIE
Cheung Tat Sang 16 n/a n/a n/a 0
SRELE TEA NiEMA TEA
Li Jian Hua 16 n/a n/a n/a 0
T TEA NiE A TEA
Independent non-executive directors:
BIYFHITES :
Chung Kam Kwong 5 4 3 3 0
EIR
Heung Kai Sing 5 4 3 3 0
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer 5 4 3 3 1
BT
Total number of meeting(s) held 18 4 3 3 1
BITEZEH
Auditor’s Remuneration % B RT 2 57 A

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid to the HE-_Z——F+_A=+—HILtFE ZHF
Company’s external auditors amounted to HK$3,480,000. RREINERZEAD 2 B & 3,480,000 7T ©
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Internal Control

The Board was fully responsible for the maintenance of a sound and
effective internal control system within the Group. Throughout the
year from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012, the Board
conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the internal control system
in all material respects including but not limited to operational,
financial, risk management and compliance controls. The Group’s
system of internal control comprised a well-defined organizational and
management structure with levels and limits of authority which was
established to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorized access or disposal, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records to produce reliable management and
financial information for internal use and for publication purpose, help
management mitigate potential risk factors and ensure compliance
with relevant rules and regulations. The system was designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems so as to achieve the Group’s objectives
and long-term goals.

The Group’s internal control system comprised the following five
components:

(1) Organizational and Management Structure — the Group has
established an organizational and management structure with
operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibilities and
delegated authority has already been established.

(2)  Authority and Control — the relevant executive Directors and
senior management have been delegated with respective levels
of authorities with regard to key corporate strategy and policy,
contractual commitments and the dealing of price sensitive
information.

(8)  Budgetary Control and Management and Financial Reporting —
budgets have been prepared by senior management including
various department heads and were subject to review and
approval by the executive Directors on a regular basis prior to
being adopted. Operating results against budgets have been
analyzed and reported to the executive Directors as a reference
to monitor the Group’s strategy and policy. Regular reviews by
the Audit Committee and audits by external auditors
respectively have been carried out to ensure the preparation of
the management information and consolidated financial
statements are in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws and regulations.
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(4)  Systems and Procedures — systems and procedures have been
established to identify, measure, manage and control various
risks including business, compliance, operational, financial and
information that may have an impact on the Group and each
major department. Exposure to these risks was monitored by
the executive Directors and the management with reference to
the regular reports produced by the Audit Committee and the
external auditors.

(5) Internal Audit — the Audit Committee has performed
independent reviews of the controls and risks identified to
ensure that adequate controls have been put in place and risk
elements have been properly addressed.

According to the review results of the Audit Committee for the year
from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2012, the Group’s internal
control system is functioning effectively and there was no significant
weakness found in the course of the review processes. The Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
and is of the opinion that there are no suspected frauds, irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement of laws, rules
and regulations that cause the Board to believe that the systems of
internal control are ineffective or inadequate. The Board is satisfied
that the Company and the Group have fully complied with the code
provisions on internal control as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code for the aforesaid year.

Financial Reporting

The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements
for the year 2012. The Management also provides all directors with
monthly updates giving them a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules.
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Company Secretary

The position of Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ma Wai Tong, CFO
of the Group. The Company Secretary reported to the Board
chairman from time to time. All directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

Since Mr. Ma was appointed in 2011, he has to take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training for the financing year
commencing on or after 1 January 2012 and he has fulfiled the
requirement during the year under review.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder
meeting.

Investor Relations

(1) Communication with Shareholders and Procedures
for putting forward proposals at general meetings
All published information, including financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and
associated explanatory documents are promptly posted on the
Group’s website at www.truly.com.hk. Viewers can also send
enquiries and proposals putting forward for shareholders’
consideration at shareholder meetings to the Board or senior
management by email at enquiry@truly.com.hk or directly by
raising questions at the general meeting of the Company.

(2) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the
Company. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at the general meeting of the
Company may send a written request to the Board of the
Company to request for a EGM. The written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the purposes
of the meeting and must be deposited at the Company’s
principle place of business in Hong Kong.
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3

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general
meetings may follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association during the financial year 2012. A copy of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB REE

Deloitte.

B2 - BAERRTDEERT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
58 35/F, One Pacific Place
IE T EBE88H 88 Queensway
1,?\ AEEHB 3548 Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 114,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB REE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensi

OEs m@mEs @ LR

meEHWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE-T-——F+-HA=+—HIEE

2012 2011
—E——fF =4
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FHET FHIT
Revenue W25 5 12,374,379 10,503,988
Cost of sales SHE R (10,817,526) (9,194,294)
Gross profit EF 1,556,853 1,309,694
Other income E A A 7 51,717 49,754
Other gains and losses HAiEE 8 19,185 (25,591)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR ERERERE
investment - (106,026)
Administrative expenses THEA (365,210) (302,821)
Distribution and selling expenses DHENEHEEH (206,107) (188,554)
Finance costs B E R 9 (72,646) (65,110)
Profit before tax A0S A 983,792 671,346
Income tax expense FifsfimAx 10 (267,833) (290,587)
Profit for the year NE 11 715,959 380,759
Other comprehensive income AEEHMZEBA
for the year
Exchange differences arising BMEEEZINEZRE
on translation 12,750 176,337
Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale A] it &8 & 7 A EE W
investment (E18) 1,584 (106,026)
Reclassification to profit or loss on A EREREBIEEN
impairment loss of available-for-sale NEEER
investment - 106,026
14,334 176,337
Total comprehensive income for the year 7N &2 EU A 4258 730,293 557,096
Profit for the year attributable to: AE BRI
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIETZ SN 710,261 380,759
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 5,698 -
715,959 380,759
Total comprehensive income AEEEERABTEENS
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIEZ SN 724,595 577,096
Non-controlling interests FEEAR MR 5,698 -
730,293 577,096
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER 15
Basic HAR 25.67 HK cents 13.76 HK cents
AL AL
Diluted s 25.67 HK cents  13.76 HK cents
AL il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2012
RZZE——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WENEE 16 4,892,599 4,559,591
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIA 17 154,466 157,812
Intangible assets EEE 18 333 480
Goodwill e 413 413
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19 48,314 46,730
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE B 27 9,033 8,815
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, FtUEEYIE - B L& E
plant and equipment YHET® 10,841 38,889
5,115,999 4,812,730
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 20 1,016,322 882,742
Prepaid lease payments FENEEFIE 17 4,052 3,644
Trade and other receivables JE U BRTE K7 EL fth E U Fh T8 22 4,009,080 3,291,120
Tax recoverable A Uy 5] 5 18 - 377
Fixed deposits TEEFZ 23 108,279 237,116
Bank balances and cash RITREF MR E 23 1,330,711 868,404
6,468,444 5,283,403
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHEIEREEE 24 2,719 2,699
6,471,163 5,286,102
CURRENT LIABILITIES pE =R
Trade and other payables FE AT BR I8 I E Ath FE AT 3UIR 25 3,091,563 2,357,078
Tax liabilities HIEAGE 163,902 273,819
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured  $R1T 2 ELAb & 5% - MIK IR 26 2,249,363 2,233,641
5,504,828 4,864,538
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 966,335 421,564
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABRRBARS
LIABILITIES 6,082,334 5,234,294
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured  $B1T 2 ELAbfE 5% - MK IR 26 905,797 798,479
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 27 36,250 39,013
942,047 837,492
5,140,287 4,396,802
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olidated Statement of Financial

o @ 8
A o
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2012 2011
—E——F —E——f
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B aE FET FAET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E

Share capital R& 7R 28 55,295 55,361
Share premium and reserves B 19 = (8 N 4,921,944 4,341,441

Equity attributable to owners of RRATRE NELER
the Company 4,977,239 4,396,802
Non-controlling interests R 163,048 -
Total equity AR 5,140,287 4,396,802

The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 114 were #HRF2BEFI4EZGAUBHRREIN -

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 —=F=A+ /\BEEEe# £ R EENZE - X
March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: BAUTATREEE

Lam Wai Wah Wong Pong Chun, James

MEE EHE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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onsolidate

Total equity
attributable
Share Capital Investment to owners Non-
Share Share options Special redemption  Exchange Other revaluation  Retained of the controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve profits  Company interests Total
ARE
BRE X REEH BB AEL FER
BE  RHEE RE BHURE EORE HERE  HtHE #E  REEN ERA8E i &it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL FEL FEL FhL FhL Thx TEL TET TEL
(note a) (note b)
(Mita) (W)
At1 January 2011 WZ%——%
—-A-H 50,327 554,168 10,000 990 82 595,553 512,775 - 2226510 3,950,405 - 3,950,405
Profit for the year AEERH - - - - - - - - 380,759 380,759 - 380,759
Other comprenensive  REFH
income for the year 2ERA
— Exchange diferences  — HEIEINETR
arising on translation FEEZ
of foreign operations NEZE - - - - - 176337 - - - 176,337 - 176337
— Fair value loss on - AREERE
avalable-for-sale ZRTEE
investment BE - - - - - - - 106028) - (106026 - (105026)
— Reclassfiication to - MHERE
profit or loss on AEEREN
impairment loss of PEZRE
available-for-sales
investment - - - - - - - 106,026 - 106,026 - 106,026
Total comprehensive AEEZERA
income for the year ok - - - - - 176,337 - - 380,759 557,096 - 557,096
Issue of share upon RERIERTEN
exercise of share BRI
options 1 21 - - - - - - - 2 - 2
Bonus issue of share BAR 5,033 (5,039) - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer b - - - - - - 73216 - (73,216) - - -
Dividends recognised as BB AN R 2k S,
distioution (note 14 (FE14) - - - - - - - - (o721 {1072 - 10721
At31December 2011 RZZ——F
+-A=1+-H 55,361 549,156 10,000 990 82 771,890 585,991 - 2423332 4,396,802 - 4,396,802
Profit for the year REEEF - - - - - - - - 710,261 710,261 5,698 715,959
Other comprehensive ~ REEHEMZE
income for the year WA
— Exchange differences  — B EIEINER
arising on translation FELZ
of foreign operations MEZE - - - - - 12,750 - - - 12,750 - 12,750
— Fair value gain on - AHMERE
avallable-for-sale ATER
investment Wiz - - - - - - - 1,584 - 1,584 - 1,584
Total comprehensive FEE2EBA
income for the year et} - - - - - 12,750 - 1,684 710,261 724,59% 5,698 730,293
Partial disposal of interests 257 & — ift &
of asubsidiary (note 33) AR
(Wi3£33) - - - - - (3,803 141,674 - (70,838) 67,033 157,350 224,383
Transfer B - - - - - - 117,358 - (117,358 - - -
Dividends recognised as ~ #ZADEZ RS
distrioution (note 14 (FirEE14) - - - - - - - - (07489 (207489) - (07489
Sharerepurchased and ~ BEERE
cancelled B’ (66) (3,636) - - 66 - - - (66) 3,702 - 8,702
At31December 2012 R-F-—%
+-A=1+-H 55,295 545,520 10,000 990 148 780,837 845,023 1684 2,737,842 4,977,239 163,048 5,140,287
ERERERAR « _T—_FF®R 45
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(@  The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of () R EIEFTIRENE QR 2 D EEEA R R UL
the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the BT RO EERER 2 =5 -

Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.

(b)  Other reserves comprise (a) the statutory surplus reserve and the enterprise (b))  HEEEE@ETEARLEME((HEH ) (FaiE

expansion reserve of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of EB)VRI B AR AFERGHENDEERRE
China (the “PRC”) other than Hong Kong. According to the Articles of B BEFEMNBAR ZEBERMA - REVETEER
Association of the PRC subsidiaries, a percentage of net profit as reported in BAZHZAEFETES L AEBRE AT RHHEBR
the PRC statutory accounts should be transferred to the statutory surplus PEEREFEH ZADLITHZSEATNESTS/ME
reserve and the enterprise expansion reserve determined at the discretion of RIE c AERBHBEEEEER  MEERRER
the board of directors of these companies. The statutory surplus reserve can BRI AR EREERGERIEMNFMER : Rb)E
be set off against accumulated loss whilst the enterprise expansion reserve BRI 2 BRAEE LW B A AR AN
can be used for expansion of production facilities or an increase in registered DEEZBWBRERME ZBRERE -

capital; and (b) difference between the carrying amount of interest in a
subsidiary disposed of and the consideration received arising from the
decrease in equity interest in a subsidiary.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HBILFE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
Profit before tax A=A 983,792 671,346
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Interest income F B A (16,322) (5,697)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHEREREERE
investment - 106,026
Amortisation of trademarks PR 8 5 39
Amortisation of technical know-how Bl S5 25 N5 S 142 5,760
(Reversal of) allowance for bad debts (B[R RERRHE (26,413) 35,843
Depreciation and amortisation of M - BRE RREITE R E
property, plant and equipment 562,027 505,879
Release of prepaid lease payments ERRTEN HERIE 4,005 3,584
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HEMEDE BE&
plant and equipment R 12,317 12,750
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HEREHEIFRBEE
held for sale a6 - (12,192)
Finance costs 7% 8 A 72,646 65,110
Share-based payment expense AR D B LT ST A 37,935 -
Operating cash flows before movements in RerEEESEBAIZ
working capital RERERE 1,630,134 1,388,448
Increase in inventories FEEM (126,837) (97,557)
Increase in trade and other receivables JiE WS AR TE R B Ath FE R TR 3 AN (678,284) (1,344,852)
Increase in trade and other payables JE AT BR 1B N B At JE A< BRIE I N 628,867 743,691
Decrease in derivative financial instruments PTHESRMIT AR - (1,746)
Cash generated from operations SEEEPTIRELZ IR ® 1,453,880 687,984
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEEBRNEH (134,676) (3,538)
PRC withholding tax paid B &R IR (15,860) (14,542)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMSEH (236,008) (86,015)
Tax paid for other jurisdictions HitheAER 2 T8 (20) (23)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHFEREFHE 1,067,316 583,866
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows '

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_Z——+_fA=+—HILEE

2012 2011
=EF-=F =—F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BELEE (798,710) (763,749)
Purchase of available-for-sale investment BEEHEERE - (152,756)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, U - BB RERE

plant and equipment SR ® (10,841) (38,889)
Acquisition of intangible assets W ER & E - (569)
Interest received =S 16,322 5,697
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - BB LRE

plant and equipment FriS 508 13,324 3,200
Proceeds from disposals of non-current assets HERFELEERYEE

held for sale FriS 5078 - 24,473
Placement of fixed deposits T HUE BRfF 30 (1,144,716) (237,116)
Release of fixed deposits R T EATFER 1,273,553 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHIAREFE (651,068)  (1,159,709)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERITREMEER (3,453,898) (1,824,711)
Dividends paid BEIRE (193,635) (123,270)
Interest paid BFE (72,646) (65,110)
Payment on repurchase of shares i B f 1 B (3,702) -
New bank and other borrowings raised FERITRHEHMEE 3,576,938 2,593,359
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM TSR - 22
Proceeds on partial disposal of interest in 2 & —RETE A A R i W

a subsidiary without losing control KEVEHIRE 2 FT1SFIR 186,448 -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METEHMEEESTHE 39,505 580,290
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRASEEBEBEMNFHR

EQUIVALENTS 455,753 4,447
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHZREeRRELEEER

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 868,404 851,945
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE Exgs o oE

CHANGES 6,554 12,012
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZASRESZEES -

OF THE YEAR, represented by BIRTEF LR S

bank balances and cash 1,330,711 868,404
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HBILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company. The Company is a public limited company with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lam Wai
Wah. The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section
headed “General Information” to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is different from the functional
currency of the Company, as the directors of the Company
consider that Hong Kong dollars is the most appropriate
presentation currency in view of its place of listing.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display (“LCD”) products
and electronic consumer products including compact camera
module, personal health care products and electrical devices.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Asset; and

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior year and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staf;gjm:énts

e A R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-ZT——F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2.

50

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities’

Mandatory Effective Date
of HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition
Guidance’

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial
Statements!
Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’
Fair Value Measurement!

Employee Benefits'
Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income*

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
HKFRS 9 is effective for the Group for annual period beginning
on 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future will have impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s available-for-sale investments. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until
a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the
current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for the Group for annual period beginning
on 1 January 2013.

The directors anticipate that the application of the new
Standard will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group, but will result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income’. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive
income to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of
tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for
annual period beginning on 1 January 2013. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012

3.

FESTHHEK#)

RERBZEE
HFEUMBHRREBEBEARARBRARGEFZE
B(EMBRR) ZHBEME - MARBHRE
EE-AERNPBEREEBRARREE
BHREG M - A A ATEHIHE -

FABESILEMBRRAZRARMY - o
NHBEAMAEMBELEAEREH L
AFAZEEENRER

MEBABZHBHRENAERERBN TMELA
B REHSHRREAEEEMKE AT

PRERAE—2 -

PIERERRRIRZRS ~ &8k~ WA KRR
X ERERAIRE RERLHE -

AHTE A R Z IR AR s T A SR B
ZHEEBNFHES

HEEARBAEIBEFERES

MEBARz2ENEMASARTRET A
RAEE AN - AMEL SR KR
FEVER M a5 IR AL A ER o

FEEREENBLARCEEEER 2
BE

WEBHAREERENB ARSIz A%
BRMB AR ZHEEERES - TR
RHAIR - ARB 2 BEMIFERER 2R
EME - T3 T AR B A R BRI 5O BY /&8 22 AR
D B - IR ER I AESR
HENKERRERXFHEEZBENER T
RESEERER  YRBTARREBA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HBILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-
current asset is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwiill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and building held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under development as
described below), are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of the
items of property, plant and equipment (other than properties
under development) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
pbasis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. When buildings
are in the course of development for production or
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included
as part of costs of buildings under construction. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including acquired technical know-how and
the cost incurred in the registration of trademarks with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, fixed deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments or observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables and loan receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade or other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank and
other borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
recognised as an expense in full at grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share options reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in
the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the profit
or loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over the
nominal value of the shares is recorded as share premium.
Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date
are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Registered capital issued to employees by a subsidiary
Registered capital issued in exchange for services are measured
by reference to the fair value of the registered capital granted.
The fair value of the services received are recognised as
expenses in full at grant date when the registered capital issued
vest immediately with a corresponding increase in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

3.
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4.

70

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its trade and bills
receivables at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether those trade receivables have suffered an impairment
loss. Management has exercised judgement when estimating
the timing and future cash flows expected to be derived from
the trade receivables and ascertain their future cash flows.
Where the future cash flows of a receivable is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss will be
provided for such a receivable and recognised in the profit and
loss.

As detailed in note 22, as at 31 December 2012, trade and bills
receivables amounting to HK$3,777,876,000 (2011:
HK$3,146,529,000) are expected to be settled within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. In determining the
amount of receivable, the management has exercised
judgement in estimating the timing and future cash flows to be
recovered and determined no impairment was necessary at the
end of the reporting period. If the actual cash flows or timing of
recovery are different from expectation, a material impairment
loss may arise.
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5. REVENUE 5. Wx
Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and WEHEFNEmIHE 2 B W R BTSRRI
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of sales tax, MEMRESEN BHWEKLRE - /T
trade discounts and returns, and is analysed as follows: N
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Sales of LCD products HERBLHEREER 10,930,123 9,760,564
Sales of electronic consumer products HEBTFHEEM 1,444,256 743,424
12,374,379 10,503,988
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. THESR
Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company, RARRESZG (MEBLIFERRE) RSN
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of SHEEREFHERBFENREERSEFRTR
resource allocation and assessment of performance focuses on FERIEMMEE - HEMEE NIRRT ME
the sales of different types of products. Inter-segment sales are T Al AEEHA S AREZED
charged at prevailing market rates. Thus the Group is currently HoAEERREETRENRETBEEE
organised into two operating segments which are sales of LCD m e HEEDENERNT

products and electronic consumer products. The information
for each operating segment is as follows:

LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD RBBEREE — RERDHERSE
products and touch panel products o FR e EE o B T
E:_DD
Electronic consumer — manufacture and distribution of BFHEBER — HERDHETEE
products electronic consumer products 2 () an s B AR 4
such as compact camera module, R4 - EARBER
personal health care products MEFEE)

and electrical devices.

EAERERAT « —E——FF35kK T
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BE-_T-——f£+-A=t—HItEE ‘
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER#®)
Segment revenues and results pal L E Y S
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AEBZREERBED RSN REE
by operating and reportable segments: DT
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-_Z——H+-A=1+—HLEFE
Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total Eliminations Consolidated
REE Ef
BTEEM HEEM DEEE %88 TE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT THERT THERT THET
REVENUE i
External sales GNEH 10,930,123 1,444,256 12,374,379 - 12,374,379
Inter-segment sales DERHEE - 399,400 399,400 (399,400) -
10,930,123 1,843,656 12,773,779 (399,400) 12,374,379
RESULT ES
Segment result DR 1,014,947 109,684 1,124,631 (16,588) 1,108,043
Finance costs HBER (72,646)
Unallocated expenses AAEAX (51,605)
Profit before tax FRraF 983,792
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE—T——E+-"A=+—HIFE
Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total Eliminations  Consolidated
RemEE BF
BRBED HEEM DI # 35 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET FHET THET FAET
REVENUE &
External sales GhEH 9,760,564 743,424 10,503,988 - 10,508,988
Inter-segment sales HEREE - 409,057 409,057 (409,057) -
9,760,564 1,152,481 10,913,045 (409,057) 10,503,988
RESULT ES
Segment result DIREE 838,488 38,353 876,841 (10,492) 866,349
Impairment loss on available- 7] 4t HH 3% & (&
for-sale investment BB (106,026)
Finance costs HBER (65,110)
Unallocated expenses AOEERY (23,867)
Profit before tax TR F 671,346

72
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, finance costs and impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2012

EER #)

2B R ()

@B R B RN AL 2 A
FEEE —H o D RATIER DB R 1T
BEERA  EFHE  MHRARTHH
158 A R0 5 5 T IRIORT) © 173
AEBRERRE W DB AR R
RRNY -

BE-_Z——H+-A=1+—HLEE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Consolidated
H e Ef
BERBER HEBEM wEe
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure SFESERF TR
of segment profits: e -
Depreciation and amortisation PTE R 8 424,823 137,351 562,174
Loss on disposal/write off of property, & /i -
plant and equipment R K 55 1 2 518 12,317 - 12,317
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts = Bz 1 {51 =] (26,413) - (26,413)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BHE-_Z——F+-_A=1+—RHALFE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products  Consolidated
&R BF
BN EMm HEEM e
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
THIT FHT FHT
Amounts included in the measure SFESEENTRE
of segment profits: HE R -
Depreciation and amortisation e N 446,910 64,768 511,678
Loss on disposal/write off of property, — H €& “HfissinE -
plant and equipment MR KR EE 10,664 2,086 12,750
Allowance for bad debts REREE 33,210 2,633 35,843

Segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are not
regularly reviewed by chief operating decision maker.

HRNBEEERAELIFREELERKE
EHEN RUBHZFEERABETR
& o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EER®)
Geographical information & & R
The following table sets out information about (i) the Group’s TREY ()R EBIZE P EM R D BRI
revenue from external customers by location of customers and BEEWZ & () AN EEILZEEMELEDE
(i) the Group’s non-current assets by location of assets. HIERBIEEMNER -

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
HBEF KR FIRBEE

2012 2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
—EF-=F =—F——F
+=A +=A
—E--fF —F——%F =+—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT FHET FHT
PRC =] 8,030,613 7,270,648 5,021,071 4,700,796
South Korea L 2,447,847 1,768,581 - -
Japan B 466,296 387,028 - -
Hong Kong B 467,773 383,563 37,581 56,388
Europe BOM 374,302 275,684 - -
Others HAth 587,548 418,484 - 1

12,374,379 10,503,988 5,058,652 4,757,185

Notes: (T
1) Regarding revenue arising from sales to external customers in Europe 1) FLIR B BUM & E b i [ SRR P B $8 & W ek i
and others, no individual countries are material and hence separate T HMEFARNBRREEENNE S ERY|
disclosure is not required. BUIREER -
) Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments and @ ERBEEIBEIHEBERE RNELEFRIBE
deferred tax assets. BB o
Information about major customers FTEERFER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years RIREEEN A EEAEERETEBIBE10%
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as ZEPIRZENT
follows:
2012 2011
—EB-—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Customer A’ BRERT 1,560,472  N/ATEM?
Customer B! BEFL N/A T B2 1,318,118
Customer C' BEFA! N/A T8 2 1,269,479
1 Revenue from LCD products ! RERBEARSE M2 WS
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 2 HAEE B HERBABREBE10% /A8 FE IR
sales of the Group s
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. HiA
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——f
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Other income includes: Hap W ABTE -
Compensation income ERE WA 4,177 8,752
Government grants (note 36) TR (B 5E36) 12,676 17,832
Interest income B A 16,322 5,697
Rental income el 8,372 7,425
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hihigxs
2012 2011
—E-C—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Net foreign exchange gain SN Ut 25 ) BB (5,803) (10,811)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERELEERDEE
held for sale 2 Was - (12,192)
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, He s - BRE MR
plant and equipment ZEE 12,317 12,750
(Reversal of) allowance for doubtful debts RER (B ) #E (26,413) 35,843
Decrease of fair value on derivative financial ~ 7448 T E AT BER D
instruments - 1
Others HA 714 -
(19,185) 25,591
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEHM
2012 2011
—E-CF —=——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Interest on bank and other borrowings ATEEZIRITREMEK
repayable BT
— within five years —REFR 72,646 62,109
— over five years — HBBERE - 3,001
72,646 65,110
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

76

10. PSR

2012 2011
—E--F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FH&T
Current tax: RERFHIR -

Hong Kong B 34,259 22,227

PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EMRETR 218,482 166,508

Other jurisdictions Hipa AR 20 22

252,761 188,757
Underprovision in prior years: BEFERHBIE -

Hong Kong BE 2,193 80,438
Withholding tax TEHIFRIS AR 15,860 14,542
Land appreciation tax + IR E R - 3,643
Deferred tax (note 27) RIER A (P FE27) (2,981) 3,207
Income tax expense for the year REEREHRAY 267,833 290,587

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Income tax arising in the PRC and other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, one of
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approved as Hi-Tech
Enterprise, and entitled to 15% PRC enterprise income tax for
three years from 2009 to 2011 and extension for further three
years was approved with effect from 1 January 2012.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and the
Detailed Implementation Rules, distribution of the profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 is subject to
PRC withholding tax at the applicable tax rate of 5%.

The Group received a notice of determination from the Inland
Revenue Department (“IRD”) dated 10 March 2011 for
additional profit tax assessments amounting to
HK$135,889,000 in respect of the disallowance of offshore
profit claims of HK$54,955,000 together with the non-deduction
of management fees, prescribed fixed assets and statutory
depreciation allowance amounting to HK$80,934,000 for the
years of assessment 2001/2002 to 2005/2006.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Group had lodged an appeal (the “Tax Appeal”) to the
Board of Review as the Group believed that there were
reasonable grounds to substantiate the claims. Based on
professional advice and recent court rulings of relevant
precedent cases related to offshore profit claims, the Group
had made a provisions of HK$55,000,000 equivalent to the
amount of tax dispute in relation to the offshore profit claims as
at 31 December 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had
conducted extensive discussion with the tax representative in
respect of the Tax Appeal. Taking into account of the estimated
time and potential cost expected to be incurred, the Group had
withdrawn the Tax Appeal and additional profits tax of
HK$80,889,000 was recognised. The total amount of
HK$135,889,000 was settled in February 2012.

10. FIEBIMAX ()

TEBREECEEBEIPZSHE BT
mEZZESRE EF(RE LK - B
B SR MIBREBRRINGEFRR 2 AR
R AREEERZZE-ZEF+-A=+—H
B 55,000,000/8 70 2 B (SN B RILE
INEFIRRZ RGN ST -

HE-Z—F+-_A=+—HLEFE K
SEBMBE L FEBBREIET T RAAR
5o BEEEEA AR M REERAE - K
SECHOEBHE L WHEREINIEH
80,889,000 JT » & #£135,889,0007% Tt E
RZE——FZAXEfte

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the REEZ 2 EHREZE R 2B
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of AR 2 SRR T
comprehensive income as follows:
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before tax B A& A 983,792 671,346
Tax at the average income tax rate of R HFTSI R 22.20%
22.20% (2011: 17.28%) T ——14F 1 17.28%) R/ 218,394 116,001
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TRAOBI S B2 B &
for tax purpose 29,802 55,204
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAEMNBRBA Z B2
purpose (883) (3,449)
Underprovision in respect of prior years BAEFERETR 2,193 80,438
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHREEE 2 RIG & 3,677 17,555
Withholding tax on distributed earnings of B ARIE D IRAHZ
subsidiaries B - 4,542
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings FEMBARIERDIERAEFZ
of PRC subsidiaries TR 15,651 17,576
PRC land appreciation tax R+ IR (E - 3,643
Tax effect of PRC land appreciation tax PRI ER 2 RIS E - (546)
Others B (1,001) (377)
Income tax expense for the year KREEEFHEX 267,833 290,587
Note: The average income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2012 s BE_E——FK-_FT——F+-_A=+—8H

and 2011 represents the weighted average tax rate of the operations
in different jurisdictions on the basis of the relevant amounts of net
profits before taxation and the relevant rate for the year.
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LFEFE 2 FIMEHRB B R BTSN F R
MR L FRBEREREFEZ TR AR R
KI5 2 IREFIHIE -

—FEFR 77



11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

78

=

_

\
=
o

2
N

[]

S
%(E
sl

[
5

o @ 8

1. NEEEF

x1000w/min
-—" -, W
-l
Lok Tal’

(=]
R

0}

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REE R TIRIBRIA T SR
charging: EEC
Auditor’s remuneration Z A B & 3,480 2,800
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses REAZ 2 FEMAR 9,288,776 8,338,964
Research and development costs recognised RAEFRZ Z KA
as an expense 481,169 376,683
Depreciation and amortisation on: AN EIB 2T E R -
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEME 562,027 505,879
Technical know-how RT3 M 142 5,760
Trademarks included in cost of sales FFASHER AR 2 EIZ 5 39
562,174 511,678
Operating lease rental in respect of rented HEMHEZ KEBOEE
premises 6,656 6,998
Release of prepaid lease payments B TENEE RIS 4,005 3,684
Staff costs, inclusive of directors’ BIRA  BIEESEME :
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits He REMER 958,025 909,332
Share-based payment AR D BETE T 37,935 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFET B 50 96,392 78,045
1,092,352 987,377
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EERITHAZMS
REMUNERATION
Lam Wai
Wah Wong
(Chairman Pong Chun, Cheung Li Jian Hua
and James  TatSang (Production Chung Ip Cho
Managing  (Executive (Marketing Managing Kam Ting, Heung
Director) Director) Director) Director) Kwong Spencer Kai Sing Total
wEE REE et
(€3:93 Ak  (THER (£EB
EBELE) (TES) #E) EBgLR) B = ERGH B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FEx FET FEx FET FHET FHET
2012 —E-CF
Directors’ fees: 2
Executive T - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive B IERT - - - - 240 120 120 480
Other emoluments paid to the YNTHTES
executive directors: ZEMEE
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 3,250 1,739 2,222 2,386 - - - 9,597
Share-based payment (note) DA B S
(&) 2,096 8,385 2,096 2,096 - - - 14,673
Performance related incentive HEEA 7 S
payments (note) (FH3E) 6,307 1,602 2,160 - - - - 10,159
Contributions to retirement RIREFIFH B
benefit scheme 28 28 28 14 - - - 98
11,681 11,844 6,506 4,49 240 120 120 35,007
2011 %
Directors’ fees: 2
Executive T - - - _ - _ _ _
Independent non-executive BT - - - - 240 120 120 480
Other emoluments paid to the SRFRITES
executive directors: ZEMEEE
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 3,110 1,626 2,080 2,268 - - - 9,084
Performance related incentive HEERNT BE
payments (note) (HzE) 3,333 1,572 2,040 2,280 - - - 9,225
Contributions to retirement RIMBRIFEIER
benefit scheme 24 24 24 12 - - - 84
6,467 3,222 4,144 4,560 240 120 120 18,873

Note: The share-based payment and performance related incentive
payments are based on the remuneration approved by the
remuneration committee for the year ended 31 December 2012 and

2011.

Mr. Lam Wai Wah is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived any

emoluments in the years ended 31December 2012 and 2011.

MEE © ARR(D B ERE N I BB A 8 2 488 TR K
HE-ZT——FR=-FT——F+=-A=+—H
tFEEFHEE e EZeETE -

MEELLENMAARRRITHAAE - BN EX
WE M BERIEATTEAE R TR AR
Z B

BE-ZT—FRZF——FtZHA=1—
ALLFE  BETHRAR T ESRER
BT B
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13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2011: four) were directors and the chief executive
of the Company whose emoluments are set out in note 12
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2011: one)
individual was as follows:

BEME

AEBLEAEEFHALS OR(ZF
——F  OR)RERABZEEZRITHRAE
HB @B N EXXMiE12 Heg—5 (=
T——F: —R)ALZHEWT

2012 2011
—E--F ZE——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e REAEN 1,147 1,311
Performance related incentive payments HEER Y HE 1,853 720
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme — RIEFIET 2420 - 12
3,000 2,043

Their emoluments were within the following bands: ARREME 2 BN T
2012 2011
—E--F ZE——F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE®R EE#HE
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T 2 2,500,000/8 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2 3,000,000/8 7T 1 -
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14. DIVIDENDS 14. K2
2012 2011
—B--F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
Dividend recognised as distribution during AEEERED RIS
the year:
2012 Interim dividend of 5 HK cents —E-_FPHREEKR
(2011 Interim dividend of 3 HK cents) 5B( = ——F R H
per share P& SRR 3B 138,288 83,041
2011 Final dividend of 2.5 HK cents —E——FREAKREFTIX
(2010 final dividend of 1 HK cent) 25 B (ZE—TFKRE
per share B SRR BN 69,201 27,680
207,489 110,721

The 2012 interim dividend in aggregate of 5 HK cents per share
amounting to approximately HK$138,288,000 of which,
HK$41,521,000 and HK$55,295,000 were paid in 2012 and
HK$41,472,000 were payable in 2013 to shareholders on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business
on 19 June 2012, 29 October 2012 and 28 January 2013,
based on 2,768,037,398, 2,764,773,398 and 2,764,773,398
ordinary shares in issue respectively.

The final dividend of 5 HK cents per share based on
2,764,773,398 ordinary shares amounting to approximately
HK$138,239,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: final dividend of 2.5 HK cents per share based on
2,768,037,398 ordinary shares, in respect of the year ended 31
December 2011) has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

AR aE D Hl%EE % 172,768,037,398 %
2,764,773,398 i& & 2,764,773,398 M & i@ i%
HE - BARZEBE——FEXA+HAB ZZ
——F+ A+ NABR-_ZE—=F—F7
N\ BEERRLERBFLIARARESE
it 2 BRERS R AR B A& HERSBN - &
#H 49 /138,288,000 7T+ & 41,521,000
T M 55,295,000 T ER T ——F K
~F+ 41,472,000/ T Al ZE— = FJEfT ©

EEDEHIR2,764,773,308 % L i@mARETE -
REBE-_ZT——F+-A=-+—HILFE
ZAREEREFSRSBIN( T ——F %
2,768,037,308 R L BT EEHE T ——
FH+-—A=t+—BIEFEZRBREFR25
L) - 584975 138,239,00058 7T+ HEBE
RN EERRAF RS EHE -
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. R EF

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is FIRERN RSB TRE NV EiEsTE -
based on the following data:

Earnings X
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Earnings for the purposes of basic and AU ESREARNRE SR T
diluted earnings per share 2 BF
(Profit for the year attributable to owners (RRBHEE ANEIEARFEE
of the Company) pagalp) 710,261 380,759
Number of shares B8 E
2012 2011
—F—= —ET——F
’000 000
T T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares A LAst B &R EARZEF| 2 L@k
for the purposes of basic earnings per share A4 F & 2,767,157 2,768,022
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BrEEsT Rk o wE
Share options issued by the Company AN aE) BT - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares i LAET B GRS BN > T @A
for the purposes of diluted earnings per share AN & 2,767,157 2,768,022
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HEERERRN 2T RRMNETHEE R
purpose of basic earnings per share has been adjusted for the REZZE—ZF 2 ROBREL AR -
share repurchase in 2012.
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year did HRITEESRARRRORFERNZ FHT
not assume the conversion of outstanding share options since HEE  WEABRESERN 25T E W HER
the exercise price was higher than the average market price of A ARITE 2 BEARAE o

the Company’s shares during the year.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y1 - MERRE
Leasehold Furniture, Properties
landand fixtures and Plant and Motor under
buildings equipment machinery vehicles  development Total
HELH &
REF HERRE BERES RE BRTUE ko

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL THETL TAT T T TETL

cosT RA
At 1 January 2011 R-E—4&—-f-A 1,021,454 451 501 5,178,518 31,738 168,033 6,851,244
Currency redlignment CLEL 31,854 20,996 78,071 593 12,722 144,236
Additions RE 766 29,773 641,002 2,345 122,476 796,362
Disposals/write off LE /s - (3,041) (35,869) (3,739) - (42,649)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+_f

=+-H 1,064,074 499,229 5,861,728 30,937 303,231 7,749,199
Currency realignment ERRE 5,417 4812 51,180 13 3,584 65,106
Additions RE - 107,781 715,096 2,721 57,333 882,931
Disposals/write off e /s 970) (34) (77,396) (1,053) - (79,459)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——%+_-H

=+-A 1,058,521 611,788 6,550,608 32,718 364,148 8,617,783
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT & & Fif&
At 1 January 2011 W-Z——%—F-H 168,654 265,856 2,161,138 26,718 - 2,622,366
Currency realignment EEHE 4,071 12,432 71,054 499 - 88,056
Provided for the year EERE 26,790 34,947 442 677 1,465 - 505,879
Eliminated on disposals/write off  H& /4 355134 - (2,472) (22,147) (2,074) - (26,693)
At 31 December 2011 R-E—F+_-H

=+-A 199,515 310,763 2,652,722 26,608 - 3,189,608
Currency realignment ElRE 1,052 2,743 23,479 87 - 27,361
Provided for the year FERE 28,392 50,632 481,124 1,879 - 562,027
Eliminated on disposals/write off  {H& /4 55145 (339) (18) (52,429) (1,026) - (53,812)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——%F+_-A

=+-H 228,620 364,120 3,104,896 27,548 - 3,725,184
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-—F+-f

=f-H 829,901 247,668 3445712 5,170 364,148 4,892,599
At 31 December 2011 R-E—F+_-A

=+-A 854,559 188,466 3,209,006 4329 303,231 4,559,591
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRZE @)
(continued)
Notes: Bt e -
(@)  The cost of leasehold land and buildings is depreciated over forty @) EHELMREFTZRANELEAN T FEH
years or the terms of the respective leases, whichever is the shorter, SR EEEFHABEERE)FTE -

using the straight-line method.

The other items of property, plant and equipment, other than Hibm%  BEEZE2HE (BRERTYE
properties under development, are depreciated on a reducing SN LARBREBIERUE - IRA TN ERGHEITE -
balance method at the following rates per annum:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 20% AL~ B RERE 15% 2 20%
Plant and machinery 11% to 15% S Ko e 25 1% £ 15%
Motor vehicles 25% to 30% RE 25% % 30%
(b) The carrying value of the Group’s property interests shown above (b) i AREEYERSCERERT
comprises:
2012 2011
—B-——F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Leasehold properties in Hong Kong held BEFRENERSFEZ
under medium-term leases HEWHE 16,550 17,088
Properties in the PRC held under RIEREANTEFERSEZ
medium-term leases mE 1,177,499 1,140,702
1,194,049 1,157,790
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17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. ERHHEERE
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments AEEENEEFRIERRE
comprise:
Land use rights in the PRC held under RIEPEREOES
medium-term lease A7 T Ak 158,518 161,456
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEREITAT :
Non-current asset ERENEE 154,466 157,812
Current asset MEEE 4,052 3,644
158,518 161,456
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Development Technical
expenditure know-how Trademarks Total
BESH HiTSEAE e Fobc]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
COST %N
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—F—H 43,602 22,661 1,570 67,833
Additions INE - 569 - 569
At 31 December 2011 RZZE—%F
and 31 December 2012 +-—RA=+—H
k=ZT-=F+=A
=+—H 43,602 23,230 1,570 68,402
AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2011 RnZZE——F—A—H 43,602 16,995 1,526 62,123
Provided for the year FEEE - 5,760 39 5,799
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+=HA
=+—H 43,602 22,755 1,565 67,922
Provided for the year FERE - 142 5 147
At 31 December 2012 N-_B——F+—-AH
=+—H 43,602 22,897 1,570 68,069
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2012 N-_B——F+—-AH
=+—H - 333 - 333
At 31 December 2011 RN-E——F+_-A8
=+—H - 475 5 480

Development expenditure, technical know-how and trademarks
are amortised on a straight-line basis over 4 years.

BRI RINEENBLERTAERE
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

19. AHHERE

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHIT
Listed equity shares listed in Taiwan (note a) R && 2 EitEzsikGm
(Mf3ta) 48,314 46,730
Unlisted equity shares, at cost (note b) JE ETRERE M (IR AE)
(FizED) 10,500 10,500
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BHERRERE (10,500) (10,500)
Total FEREE 48,314 46,730
Notes: BiE -
(@  The listed equity investment represent approximately 2% equity (@ EWRAEREER—HAESEEMKILZZATR

interest in a company incorporated in Taiwan with the registered
shares listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, which are stated at fair
value. The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on
quote market bid price available from the relevant stock exchange.
During 2011, since there was a significant and prolonged decline in
the fair value of that investment below its cost, an impairment loss of
HK$106,026,000 has been recognised for the year ended 31
December 2011.

The investments represent the unlisted equity shares issued by
private entities in Japan. The investments are stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The directors had
assessed the future cash flows expected to be generated and an
impairment loss was fully provided against the cost in prior years.

20. INVENTORIES

86

ZHI2% B AR - R AR ZEMBGO R & E
BHER G ET - WIRATFEEER - EWR
AREBEHZ A FEBEDNREBELFRZ SR
TEBEABET -R_Z—%F  ANZKRE
ZAFEBERNERFETREEAERE &)
R-ZE——F+ - A=+—H I FEERRE
518 106,026,000 7 7T °

FZREE - RANLAEREITNIE Ei#n
Bt o RNEREBATEEZHHEBK
ARBEERREATEETEISENE ¥
BRABERREAR NBEFE  BFEK
AHEEMEEE ZRHRERE - BERRA
ERHFHERERRERE -

20. &

2012 2011

—E——F —ET——%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Raw materials JR# % 278,407 213,921
Work in progress TR 258,248 397,331
Finished goods BIRK T 479,667 271,490
1,016,322 882,742

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e A R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HBILFE

21. LOAN RECEIVABLE 21. EWWERR
2012 2011
=F-—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Interest-free loan receivable & B EINER 24,762 24,762
Less: allowance for loan receivable B EUE TR (24,762) (24,762)

The directors have assessed the expected future cash flows to
be generated and allowance for loan receivable was fully
provided against the carrying amount as at 31 December 2012

RZBE——FR = ——F+ A =+—
B BFRCETEEHBEEZAKIBER
2 BEREAEREGHREWEREE -

and 2011.
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, FEUWRARIE K H 4th FE UK IR

2012 2011

—E-—C—fF —T——%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Trade and bills receivables JE I BR I8 K W ZE i 3,784,407 3,158,077
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (6,531) (6,548)
3,777,876 3,146,529

Other receivables, deposits and prepayment  E {th JEUFRIE « 24 M IETFIE 231,204 177,801
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REREE - (33,210)
231,204 144,591

Total trade and other receivables FEUS BR 1B K E b JE UK R IE AR5 4,009,080 3,291,120

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to
its trade customers. Included in trade and bills receivables are
bills receivables with the carrying amount of HK$964,221,000
(2011: HK$734,071,000). The amounts are unsecured, interest
free and with a maturity period ranging from 30 to 90 days.

Included in the other receivables is other PRC tax recoverable
of HK$134,740,000 (2011: HK$75,784,000).

AEBGTHESIEFPNFI0E0AETE
ZEEH - BURBEREREEANBEER
fE 5964,221,0008 t( = & — — F:
734,071,000 7T) 2 R R - ZF B A
TR~ 8 LB HER N T 30E90H T -

H & WK IR B HE L P B AT e B AR IR

134,740,000/ 70 (ZF——F : 75,784,000
HBIT) e
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trade and bills receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

22, FEUNBRIE K H At E YW FIE (&)

AEBUNEHEEERINEEEUINZER
B FRUSRTA R B REHINT

2012 2011

—F--F ZF—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Denominated in HK dollars B TTEHE 89,199 26,092
Denominated in Euro ABTTEHE 40,309 31,825

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period, net of the allowance for doubtful debts at the reporting
date:

PR B 2 8 R T L AR (3 8%
REBFEAHLI) RRERE BB
m

2012 2011
—E-CF 2

Trade Bills Trade Bills
receivables  receivables Total receivables receivables Total
e RIS EhEE B FEYiRIE EYZE at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR Tir THEL THEL
Within 60 days 60EA 2,215,417 619,502 2,894,919 1,936,061 377,647 2,313,708
611to0 90 days 61290H 419,598 140,055 559,653 403,198 183,955 587,153
More than 90 days BB H 118,640 204,664 323,304 73,199 172,469 245,668
2,813,655 964,221 3,771,876 2,412,458 734,071 3,146,529

88

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit rating
limits for each customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed once a year. 84% (2011: 83%) of the trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired having settlement subsequent
to the reporting date and with no past history of defaults in
payment.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$455,685,000 (2011:
HK$409,309,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing of trade and bills receivables which are past

22, FEUNBRIE K H At E YW FIE (&)

ERMERREzBUIRAERERRE

due but not impaired 2 R
2012 2011
—F--F ZFT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Within 60 days B0EH A 423,995 361,184
61 to 90 days 612 90H 7,753 38,728
More than 90 days HBiHm o0 H 23,937 9,397
Total 1EEE 455,685 409,309

In determining the recoverability of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables, the Group consider any change in credit
quality of the debtors from the date of credit was initially granted
up to the reporting date. Accordingly, the directors believe that
there is no further credit provision required in excess of the
allowance already made.

An allowance was provided on doubtful debts due from trade
and other receivables and the movement are as follows:

PAE TE FE M BR TR I R MR 18 e B At R MUBRIR
ZAIREEE - AREEEEARIRLIE
EZHEERERILREER 2 EEERN
EAEE - Bt - EFRAEAE—TFEH
HBBCFREZEERE -

B L A AR TR e B At R KUK IR 2 FE MR BT
R BRZFHWNT

2012 2011

=F-=F ZFT——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Balance at beginning of the year FYEEHR 39,758 7,421
Impairment losses recognised on receivables B gt U R IBTERR 2 R EE 18 - 35,843
Amounts written off as uncollectible Wias AR Y Bl 2 I8 (6,814) (3,506)

Reversal of impairment losses EREYFIERER 2 RERBE

recognised on receivables B[ (26,413) -
Balance at end of the year F R aE e 6,531 39,758

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts as at 31 December
2011 were individually impaired trade and other receivables with
an aggregate balance HK$33,210,000. Impairment losses were
recognised based on the analysis and internal assessment of
the recoverability of the debts. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances. Upon settlement by the debtor
during the year ended 31 December 2012, HK$26,413,000 of
impairment losses were reversed.

R-ZE—F+-_A=+—H8 REBEHRX
BIEAA LSS 533,210,000 78 7T 2 B RE FE
W ARIE & E b E WL SRIE o JRE BB T IREE
BB AU RN 2 DT R A EPEL A IR - AN&
B0 Mgk % 4SS A R o FEUERSK
REE-_Z——F+_A=+—HILFEE
[E81% - B BB EEE 26,413,000 87T °
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23. FIXED DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND 23. EHiER HBITEERES
CASH

2012 2011
—F--F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash on hand and in bank We NIBTERF 1,022,947 634,486
Short term deposits RHTE TR 307,764 233,918
1,330,711 868,404
Fixed deposits with original maturity date [REIEAE B =1 H 2
more than 3 months TEHIE K 108,279 237,116
The Group’s fixed deposits and bank balances and cash that REENEHEEBRERBYGEEEUIIN 2B
are denominated in currencies other than the functional Bz FBEFEAZRIBITEEFERIRSEY W0
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below: T
Japanese Yen HK$ Us$ RMB
A BT EYH AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2012 R-_FE——F+_#
=+—H 2,471 65,657 47,761 509,269
As at 31 December 2011 W—Z——%F+=A
=+—H 2,891 32,306 41,130 555,525
Fixed deposits and bank balances carry interest at fixed and MR RRITEFT D RN F0.01% £E3%
variable rates respectively which ranged from 0.01% to 3% ZT——F:001%E2.4%) Z B E &F
(2011: 0.01% to 2.4%) per annum. E)FFKETE ©

24. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 24. H#EHEFRBEE

2012 2011

—F-=F =%

HK$°000 HK$’000

THET FAT

Leasehold properties in the PRC held under R i EIFR P R H

medium-term leases ZHEYE 2,719 2,699
The directors of the Company approved the disposal of certain AAFEEHAHENERRIEEIRESY
properties which were previously developed as staff quarters. ETFyE. NBEEE FEEMEA
Leasehold properties with a carrying amount of HK$63,411,000 63,411,000 T A EMENBNREZE
had been reclassified from prepaid lease payment and LREYME BMERZEESHLE HEh
properties, plant and equipment in prior years, of which 12,281,000 TR -_E—EHE REBA
HK$12,281,000 was sold in 2011 for consideration of 24,473,000 T - HE-_E——F+ 8
HK$24,473,000. The gain on disposal was approximately —+—BIFE - HERZSYAE12,192,000
HK$12,192,000 and was recognised in profit for the year ended BT WHERARF - ERTELERSY
31 December 2011. No leasehold properties was sold during . B EENS THEEYLENRELE o

the year. The directors expect the remaining leasehold
properties will be sold in the coming year.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

25. BAREAERHEMENKE

MNREIARIZBHZA A2 2 EMRE R
BoMmT

2012 2011

—F--F ZFT——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFHET

Within 60 days B0EH A 1,699,053 1,221,340
61 to 90 days 612 90H 540,104 325,648
More than 90 days HBiHmo0 H 221,081 110,654
2,460,238 1,657,642

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 60 to 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
time frame.

Included in other payables are sales deposit received with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$113,613,000 (2011:
HK$103,910,000), accruals of operating expenses with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$202,532,000 (2011:
HK$175,138,000), payables for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment with aggregate amount of HK$45,332,000
(2011: HK$87,441,000), government grants of HK$22,854,000
(2011: HK$25,020,000) and dividend payable of
HK$41,881,000 (2011: HK$28,027,000).

The Group’s trade payables that are denominated in currencies
other than functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

REBEMONEERNFE0EWNR - AEE
HEBAEE M BRAREERR - RN
EEMAS NPT B B ROA -

H b fET A B IR AR E A 113,613,000
Bt (ZZ——4 :103,910,000/8 L) 2 B
WiEE % « BIRMEE A 202,532,00078 7T
—ZF——4% 175,138,000/ 7T ) Z FEFT 4L
BEM - % A45332,0008 T (ZF——
F 1 87,441,000/ 70) 2 s IBE W % - RRE
R 2 FEFIE 22,854,000 L (= Z
— — 4 1 25,020,000/ 7T ) 2 BT EBE &
41,881,000/ 7T ( —Z — — £ : 28,027,000
BIL) ZERRE -

AEBAEEEEERIEER NI ZEE
SME 2 A BRIAESIT

2012 2011

—F--F %

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

Denominated in HK dollars B TTETHE 82,615 109,676
Denominated in Japanese Yen A HEFHE 84,435 80,492
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS, 26. MITREMEE > BIKHF
UNSECURED
2012 2011
—E-—C—fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Bank loans HTITER 1,710,904 1,828,560
Trust receipt loans EEUIEER 1,375,203 1,155,295
Other loans HibEm 69,053 48,265
3,155,160 3,032,120
The Group’s bank and other borrowings that are denominated NEENEBEEBEERBNEEK NI G
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant HME 2 RITREMEEERINNT
group entities are set out below:
Denominated in HK dollars B TTEHE 1,535,494 2,453,876
Denominated in Japanese Yen A HEFHE 83,799 66,676
Carrying amount repayable*: FETERTEIE " -
Within one year N—F R 2,249,363 2,208,641
More than one year, but not exceeding —FERERREARN
two years 646,825 378,288
More than two years, but not exceeding MEBRBRAEFNA
five years 258,972 406,839
More than five years AFE - 13,352
3,155,160 3,007,120
Carrying amount of bank loans that are TERRERRET —FAEE
not repayable within one year from 1 @Aﬁ/\{g%zﬁﬂ PR -3 v
the end of the reporting period but BERGIRREEaES)
contain a repayment on demand clause ZEEETE
(shown under current liabilities) - 25,000
3,155,160 3,032,120
Less: Amount due within one year shown B PR RBeErZ—FA
under current liabilities ElD=iE Q] (2,249,363) (2,233,641)
Amount due after one year shown FIRIEREBBER 2 —Fi&
under non-current liabilities =@ 905,797 798,479
* The amount due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in * BB RERRESRBE 2 BT ERAH
loan agreements. o
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All the Group’s borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
or London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus certain basis
points. Interest is repriced every three months and the range of
effective interest rates is at 0.99% to 3.10% (2011: 1.05% to
3.50%) per annum.
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27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 27. EEBIBEE &F
For the purpose of presenting in the consolidated statements of BRGEEBBEARERP 2% St 2FHm
financial position, the following is the analysis of the deferred tax SZEERIBAS ST T ¢
balances for financial reporting purposes:
2012 2011
—B-—CfF —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 36,250 39,013
Deferred tax assets R ITBE E (9,033) (8,815)
27,217 30,198
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) ERFEERBAEEABRIN I EETEHIE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BEBE)RESHTT
prior years:
Allowance
for Undistributed
Accelerated receivables profits of
tax and PRC
depreciation inventories subsidiaries Total
D BWFER PEKEAR
BEITE FEEE K7 E R HmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FiET
At 1 January 2011 E’\ £—F—H—H 25,442 (8,451) 10,000 26,991
Reversal of deferred tax o)k )14 7 1l
liability upon distribution BLERBARE
of profits - - (10,000) (10,000)
(Credit) charge to profit or REFERT (ER)
loss for the year X i (4,005) (364) 17,576 13,207
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+_-A
=+—H 21,437 (8,815) 17,576 30,198
Reversal of deferred tax ok )14 7 Bl
liability upon distribution BERIEEE
of profits - - (15,860) (15,860)
(Credit) charge to profit or REFERT (HL)
loss for the year S&| (2,554) (218) 15,651 12,879
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+_A
=+—H 18,883 (9,033) 17,367 27,217

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$167,462,000 (2011: HK$150,940,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

REEHR AEB 2 RHAMK
&5 #8167,462,000%8 T( = & — — F:
150,940,000/ 7T) A FA{EH S R 20m 7 o |
RARBEGFTARACHEF AR - B I Wk iz %
EEERELERIAEE - RERRFEE
o A A PR HA A5 8 o
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27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation =
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$288,052,000 (2011: HK$247,413,000) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences

=T

and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

28. SHARE CAPITAL

94

28. A

—A—B#E
K BO B

EEBEEE, B #®)

Number of ordinary shares

BEFBEGCERSHEE BT NF
AP BB B A B BRE 2 i F
BABMIEIR - HERE
CWERP B AR RN R Y
B %= £5288,052,000/ jt( = & — — F:
247,413,000 7T) {EIEE R IE B - [REA
RAEBEFR IR BRI TR EEARRE
MEARETSEN R ARRB R TR E5E -

B 765 R

EEREA
at HK$0.02 at HK$0.10 Share
per share per share capital
#Z8KR0.02ET #EBRO.10ET [
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: AT
Balance at 1 January 2011 RZE——F—[—H
2 ka8 - 650,000,000 65,000
Increase bzl - 350,000,000 35,000
Effect of share sub-division to BROFHEEGR0.028 7T
HK$0.02 each (note b) =2 (ff5b) 5,000,000,000  (1,000,000,000) -
Balance at 31 December 2011 and —E——F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2012 &_Yf_fH_H
—t-HZ&H 5,000,000,000 - 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR
Balance at 1 January 2011 RNZE——F—A—H2Z&% 503,269,527 50,327
Effect of share sub-division (note b) B in i i 2 572 (FiisEb) 2,616,347,635  (508,269,527) -
Issue of ordinary shares upon MBITAREITE AR
bonus issue (note c) (Msxc) 251,634,763 - 5,033
Issue of ordinary shares upon PRI TE RS T
exercise of share options TR 55,000 - 1
Balance at 31 December 2011 A—E——F+-H=+—H
ZHEER 2,768,037,398 - 55,361
Shares repurchased and cancelled O & EFERND (3,264,000) - (66)
Balance at 31 December 2012 ——F#+=-A=+—8H
KR 2,764,773,398 - 55,295

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2012
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

28. [RA (&)

Notes:

On 19 January 2011, an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders
at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company pursuant to which:

(@) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$65,000,000 to HK$100,000,000;

(b) each of the existing issued and unissued share capital of the
Company of HK$0.10 per share was subdivided into 5 shares of
HK$0.02 each.

(c) the issued share capital was increased by way of bonus issues on the
basis of one bonus share for every ten shares.

Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 34.

During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares
through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

BaE

RZTB——F—A+NEB  BRRAABERFRIR
FEARERRER B

@ AR A ZEERZA 565000000 T =
100,000,000 7T :

) ARBBBEEITRABITRATFREE
0.108 T2 MmO 4 A5 R ERAE0.025 7T
2B e

©  EBRETERMER AR EEETLA
PRIZINE BEATRRAR -

BRATTIERE AR 2 FHB BN M FE34

FR - ARAEEEEMERZABRIE
BRIEAGEOHMT :

No. of ordinary Aggregate
Month of shares of Price per share consideration
repurchase HK$0.02 each Highest Lowest paid
BREE
0.0287T 2 BRER

L A=DzR HBEREAE RE RIE ENRNKRE
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
BT BT FET
September /1 A 2,894,000 1.15 1.06 3,276
October + A 370,000 1.15 1.15 426

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. bt B A BE (O] B JEE R A o
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or FER - BERNARMNBAREE - HEE

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

B{EAIARR] EHES
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29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 26, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure
periodically. The directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with the capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends and new
share issues of the Company as well as raising of bank
borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior
year.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

96

29.

EXEREE

AEBETEAEEUBRAEEANER
RERERE - RS aREFEERTE
RBRERZ AL o

AEBENEARBHESFH(BENE26
PR fEE  EMBRE MRS EEER)
Kk (BIEE BT R #) AR -

ARREETHECHEARE - EFER
BEARARAREEARB @R  XiEBX

MR -~ BITARBFED RERRITER
FEHHEBRBERRRE -

30. €RITH

a. Categories of financial instruments a. SRIASE

2012 2011
—E-—F —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBET FHT

Financial assets THEE

Loans and receivables (including cash BN EWRIE (B

and cash equivalents) ReRBLFEIER) 5,233,493 4,337,000
Available-for-sale investments AHPERE 48,314 46,730
5,281,807 4,383,730

Financial liabilities TEEE
Amortised cost AR 5,962,907 5,182,022
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

b.

30. €EMIE %)

Financial risk management objectives and b. LREMEEEERBEK
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include fixed AEEZFEeRTABEREFR
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other RITEFTRES  BRIRE R E AL RE
receivables, available-for-sale investment, trade and other WiE A HERE - ENEEK
payables and bank and other borrowings. Details of these HMEMRIEARRITREMEE -
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. ZEEMIAZFBRSERNZEIED
ER o
The risks associated with these financial instruments and ElAZEsm I Az AR MEIEZE
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out FEABREHERN T ERESER
below. The management manages and monitors these FEERZERE - LARER KA U
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are BiEE S o
implemented in a timely and effective manner.
Market risk 5 Ak
The Group’s activities expose primarily to the financial INEE 7 7 BACTF R G YN E E
risks of changes in interest rates, foreign currency R HES RS A REREEE G
exchange rates and change in prices (see below). (RTx) -
() Foreign currency risk () SMEER
The Group undertakes certain transactions NEBZHETFRHUAIINEE -
denominated in foreign currencies which are ZEINEAIEENBARINES
different from United States dollars and Renminbi, B (ETTRARE) LINYEE -
the functional currency of the respective
subsidiaries.
The carrying amounts of foreign currency risk arising RIEH - AINEEHE 2 §E
from foreign currency denominated monetary assets ENEYEEEAZINERRZ
and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as EREMEDT
follows:
Liabilities Assets
=E BE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B—-F —T—— —B--F _T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FTHERT FAETT
Hong Kong dollar BIT 1,628,350 2,594,604 154,856 58,398
Japanese Yen H 168,234 147,168 2,471 2,891
Euro BT 312 - 40,309 31,825
RMB AR - - 509,916 557,049
TWD et - - 48,349 46,730

EANEBRERART ¢ —T——FFf
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit after taxation for the
year in response to reasonably possible change in
the functional currency i.e. United States dollars to
the relevant currencies which the Group have
significant exposure at the reporting date. Since
Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US dollars under
the Linked Exchange Rate System, the
management does not expect significant foreign
currency exposure in relation to the exchange rate
fluctuation between Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars. The Group mainly exposes to foreign
currency risks other than US dollars.

30. €EMIE %)

TREAREEREREEE)

misEkE (E)

(i)

SIE R (AB)

BURE DT
TRERERINEES (BIXT)
HR\AKEREEREmHERR
o HEERAREHIR A EE
8 MERAKEAFERHR
HAPTEE 2 AEE - BRR
1 Bk B BE R 2B T B 5k T B
W BEBY TEMEREGME
TCHLSE T IE KON B 2 EASNER,
B o REEF BETETIAIMI

wz Ak -

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
United States United States

dollar Increase dollar Increase

strengthens (decrease) strengthens (decrease)

(weakens) in profit (weakens) in profit

EnHE a3 XA kbl

(i21&) (H2) (B2f8) CRA)

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FiET

Japanese Yen H 11% 15,225 5% 6,024
(11%) (15,225) (5%) (6,024)
Euro BT 2% (668) 2% (531)
(2%) 668 (2%) 531
RMB AR 1% (4,258) 4% (18,605)
(1%) 4,258 (4%) 18,605
TWD e 4% (1,615) 4% (1,561)

(4%) 1,615 (4%) 1,561
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances and variable-rate
bank and other borrowings (see notes 23 and 26
for details). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
and LIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings. The management
considers the exposure to interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances is insignificant due to the
low interest rate. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contract to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, the management of the
Company will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for variable-rate bank borrowing. The analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis point (2011: 100
basis point) increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2011:
100 basis point) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would
decrease/increase by HK$26,346,000 (2011:
decrease/increase by HK$25,318,000).

30. €EMIE %)

b.

EAERBRAT ¢« —T—

TREAREEREREEE)

misEkE (E)

(i)

T 1
$‘il/,\7¥w*ﬁiiﬁ§7’w$)§k
% 0 AR TR B RITET MY
BHRITEEAREMEE (FIB
RKsE23 % 26) 2 RITHIHH =
B AEE REREFER
kB AEB A TEEZE
% C ETEERREFBRITEER
RmBIRITRERE 2 -
EEE"T KA ZARFER - EHtE
BERR/RITET ZHENERE
I TEA - AEBBRRILEE
ﬁﬁ&ﬁ?ﬁi/*\ 7 DA S BRI 2R
o AWM ARFIERERNEA
FERZREPEANERR o

BURE DT
AT ERE DM IR T BRTT
EEZFERBRMEE - Zo

DERERBREREF ZBEKA
) AR W [B] 1 4 B2 o AN R BT {E R

1008 F(=ZZ——4 : 100%57)
zwmrw REEIEEHF

RRHBEABEHIEL 25
f“éw

i F & BT ER100 8 F (=

T——F  100%F)  MAEL
foB BEETE - AREREE

—E-—F+-A=+—HIF
& 2 B R & s A AR 238 hn
26,346,000/ (=& —— F :
D, 18 H025,318,000587T) ©
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec) 30. €T R #®)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. £REMEEEERBEE)

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Other price risks
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in listed equity securities classified
under available-for-sale investment.

Price risk sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 15% (2011: 15%) higher,
investment revaluation reserve would increase by
HK$7,247,136 (2011: HK$7,009,475) as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments. If equity prices had been 15% (2011:
15%) lower, the profit for the year would decrease
by HK$7,247,136 (2011: HK$7,009,475) as it
indicates impairment losses.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had
concentration of credit risk as 21% of total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest trade
debtor, which is a subsidiary of a listed company located
in the PRC with good reputation and repayment history.
No concentration of credit risk is noted in 2012.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

With respect of credit risk arising from the loan receivable
and other receivable, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each receivable at the end of each reporting
period and allowance for loan receivable and other
receivable are made. The management of the Company
considers that the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the loan receivable is limited as the amount
has been fully provided for. The Group manages its credit
risk by closely monitoring and follow up action has been
taken to recover the overdue loans receivable. Other
receivables consist of a large number of counterparties
which do not give rise to significant concentration of credit
risk.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by the
management of the Company.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors its
current and expected liquidity requirements regularly and
ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from reputable financial institutions to
meet the Group’s liquidity requirements in the short and
long term. The management of the Company also
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents adequate to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

30. €EMIE %)

b.

EAERBRAT ¢« —T—

TREAREEREREEE)

FERR(E)
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B EMEREF - AREREER
BETE W @A HEE - thoh - N
EensREHRENZERWKIA
Z AR E S EE - RERHEARE SR
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flow. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rates, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

Weighted

average
effective Oto3 4-6
interest rate months months

TS

RBRAE TE=FEA DEXEA
% HK$'000 HK$'000

30. €M I A%

b.

7-12

months

tE+=f8A
HK$'000

TREAREEREREEE)

RBE TR (&)
TRAMAZINAEE SR A E 2R
BHFH o ARRIEASE B A E K
BRZHZFPAHMEMBEIRNRR
TREMABE - ZXREBREMNEEAE
BEeRE - MASRERNFEH X
AERAIRFTRSBEIRERSE AR
ZHMEFHHE

Total Carrying

1-2 2-3 Over 3 undiscounted ~ amount at
year years years  cash flows 31 December
R+=A

RFRRE =t-H
—EmF MEZE BB=%F RELE ZIEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEn FEr TER TEr FEr FEr TER TEr
2012 —E-CF
Non-derivative instruments  # {74 T &
Trade and other payables N EEREEARE - 2,807,747 - - - - - 2,807,747 2,807,747
Variable interest rate bank FARITIEERAMEE
and other borrowings 2.36 1,903,056 85,206 296,402 664,648 266,171 4,875 3,220,358 3,155,160
4,710,803 85,206 296,402 664,648 266,171 4,875 6,028,105 5,962,907
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Oto3 4-6 7-12 1-2 2-3 Over 3 undiscounted amount at
interest rate months months months year years years cash flows 31 December
Nt+=A
T ABERE =t+-8
ERFE  TE=EA WNEAER LET=EAR —EmF WE=F BB=F RELE ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET FET FET TET FET
2011 3%
Non-derivative instruments  3£74£ T &
Trade and other payables ERREREMENE - 2,149,902 - - - - - 2149902 2,149,902
Variable interest rate bank FEBRTEEREMEE
and other borrowings 2.68 1,951,975 106,210 191,106 424,803 254,611 186,498 3,115,203 3,032,120
4,101,877 106,210 191,106 424,803 254,611 186,498 5,265,105 5,182,022
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, bank and other borrowing with
a repayable on demand clause of the carrying amount of
HK$25,000,000 were included in “O to 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors believed that
it was not probable that the banks would exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment and
such term loans would be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreement. On this basis, the interest and principal cash
flows for those bank and other borrowings for the
outstanding amounts at 31 December 2011 of
HK$25,515,000 were included in “1 to 2 year” time band.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximates their fair values.

30. €EMIE %)

b.

TREAREEREREEE)

HRBESRMR ()
R—_FE——F+—_A=+—H 825
RESRERERZRITREMEE
2 BRI {E 4 25,000,000/8 7T © B 5 A
EXREHBESFR [ZE=EAH ] KR
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AFEE
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)

c. Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

30. €EMIE %)

c. DFEEGE
R BEMRR TR ABRI QX FEET

=
TRIBHA)Z AR FEERERIE T
EZERT AN ERAIBRZA
FEESED/1EIMR -

s FIRAFEEFNENERDH
MEESRBERRREMIST ZH
B (RERE)ME

s F2RAVEEFNENREEN
BEZATEE (BIER) HEEZE
Z(AMERERNE) AEHRE
(1 P RERRIN) MISH

s FIEAVEEFENEMREE
WHERABEENSEECEE
KB EER(TABRREZ8R)
BERMmEH

2012
—E——F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
15K FE2HK HEIR st

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FHET

Available-for-sale AIHEERE
investments 48,314 - - 48,314
2011
—F—F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE1H FE2H FIR 5T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’'000
FHT FHIT FHIT T
Available-for-sale AIHHERE

investments

46,730 - - 46,730

104 Truly International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e A R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HBILFE

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. KERYEAE

The Group as lessee

At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

AEBEREEA

REER  AEBRBETATREHLEROR
THIHARR B A 2 AR R AR KA A9 1 FORHE N
T

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Within one year —F R 9,501 3,355
In the second to fourth year inclusive FE_FEENF(BEEEMSF) 8,758 283
18,259 3,638

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for terms of two to fourth years with fixed rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$8,372,000 (2011: HK$7,425,000), which was derived from
letting of staff quarters included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment.

At the reporting date, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

REMONREAREREETRAEME
MENZEE BHZHEERRMED
FoURETHEE -

AEBEERHEEA
KEERI 2 YERS WA 8,372,000
T(ZFE——4%F 7425000 7T) * 25
SWAKRE HBHARERYE - HE KR
HrEBIES o

RB|EH - AEREEH NIIRKSEERLON
REBRPFEILEX -

2012 2011

—E——F —E——1F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Within one year —FR 1,947 778
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFFEERF (BREEEMF) 2,487 778
4,434 1,556
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32. COMMITMENTS 32. &iE
2012 2011
—B--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for FUIEYZE - BERERBEETD
but not provided in the consolidated BAREGEPBREF
financial statements in respect of BEcEARTH
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 52,162 60,048
Capital expenditure authorised but not FUEEME - BERRECERE
contracted for in respect of acquisition BRFTHZEARTH
of property, plant and equipment 84,000 342,000
33. PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN A 33 HUHE—BRBELIRERR N
SUBSIDIARY AND SHARE-BASED BOABERIGFZRS
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
In March 2012, pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement RZE—ZF=H BREAEHEHE-FET

entered into between the Group and an independent third
party, the Group disposed of 2% of the equity interest in a
subsidiary in the PRC (the “PRC Subsidiary”) with effective
interest reduced from 100% to 98% at cash considerations of
approximately HK$7,299,000.

In December 2012, in order to enhance and increase the capital
base of the PRC Subsidiary, the PRC Subsidiary has increased
its registered capital by approximately HK$13,847,000 with
cash considerations of approximately HK$20,917,000 received
from directors and senior management of the Group (the “First
Capital Increase”). In addition, the PRC Subsidiary has further
increased its registered capital by approximately
HK$36,332,000 with cash considerations of approximately
HK$158,232,000 received from two independent third parties
(the “Second Capital Increase”). Upon the completion of the
First Capital Increase and the Second Capital Increase, effective
equity interest of the Group in the subsidiary reduced from 98%
to 85.42%.

In respect of the First Capital Increase, the estimated fair value
of the increased registered capital was estimated by the
directors at HK$58,852,000, which was estimated with
reference to the considerations received from the independent
third parties in the Second Capital Increase. The Group
recognised the total expense of HK$37,935,000, which
represents the difference between the fair value of increased
registered capital and the cash considerations received from
directors and senior management of the Group, for the year
ended 31 December 2012 in relation to the share-based
payment transactions.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, pursuant to
resolutions passed at an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company on 22 December 2003, the Company had terminated
a share option scheme which was adopted on 22 May 2001
(the “Old Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”).

(i)

Old Scheme

The purpose of the Old Scheme was to motivate
employees of the Group and to allow them to participate
in the growth of the Company. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options might be granted
under the Old Scheme was not permitted to exceed 10%
of the share capital of the Company in issue from time to
time. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to any individual was not
permitted to exceed 25% of the aggregate number of
shares for the time being issued and issuable under the
Old Scheme. Any participants who accepted an offer of
the grant of an option in accordance with the terms of the
Old Scheme should pay to the Company HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof within a period
of 30 days from the date on which an option was offered
to the participant.

As at result of the share-division and bonus issue of the
Company in January 2011, the number of option had
been adjusted in accordance with the Old Scheme. The
exercise price of the option granted on 16 July 2001 was
adjusted to HK$0.399 and the number of share options
was increased to 82,500. The outstanding options were
either exercised or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2011.

34. BBRAETE

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLFE 1R
BARRNR - BEE=F+_-_A -+ -HHTT

Z BER K5 B

SRBIRER  ARAEK

FRZZET—FHAZT - ARRKZERE
HEI(TEFHE)) - YR —IEF B2
([Fhatd D) -

(i

Bira
EffflganBASEZER  YE
RESLBARBZER - REBEEE
Al PRI ZBREmS R 2 R EE
Re MSBBRARNREETRA
B 10% ° AJ &R FAEfAIME R A £ 2 BAX
BT RZBNEE &R TFEE
ERREBEAECDBHTRAETZR
0B 25% o (R AR B B 51 Bl 16K
BEMMERBREZSEEANBER
R T2EEE BREF 30 HEANA
NEFIZEW ARt JLRANNCI R )
1.008 7T °

BHARARR-E——E— AETR
MIFHENRAIRR T Bt EEE
EREEFEFLAE - RZTT—
FEtA+ A NABRLZEREZITEE
FEA0.30078 T - BERREEE RGN
82,5001 ° MARITE 2 BERENE
E_E——F+-A=+—HItFEE
BEITER R
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

New Scheme

The Company’s New Scheme, was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed at an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 22 December 2003 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to eligible persons or
rewarding for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group and will expire on 21 December 2013. Under
the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible persons, including (i) any director
or proposed director, full-time employee or proposed
employee of any member of the Group or controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder; (i) any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder; and
(i) any business or joint venture partner, contractor, agent
or representative of any supplier of goods or services to
or any customer or distributor of goods or services of any
member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Scheme and the Old
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital and with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii)

New Scheme (continued)

Options granted must be accepted within 21 days from
the date of option offer, upon payment of HK$1.00 per
option. Options may be exercised at any time from the
date of grant of the share option to the 10th anniversary
of the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by
the directors of the Company, and will not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of
the Company’s share.

As a result of the share sub-division and bonus issue of
the Company in January 2011, the number of option has
been adjusted in accordance with the New Scheme. The
exercise price of the option granted on 26 February 2004
and 15 June 2006 was adjusted to HK$2.109 and
HK$1.742 per share respectively, and the number of
share options was increased to 236,362,500 and
74,250,000 respectively.

The number of shares in respect of which options had
been granted previously which remain outstanding under
the New Scheme was 310,612,500, representing
approximately 11.2% of total issued share capital of the
Company. The options are exercisable at any time until
21 December 2013.

34. BEBRETTE (2

(1)

EANEBRERART ¢ —T——FFf

et (&)

Bz ERENERNBREREEY
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BREE (&)
(i) New Scheme (continued) (i) FErE(E)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s TEXWEREE(BFEES)AEAAQT
share options held by the employees (including directors): BE AR HE 2 2515 -
Number of options
BREHA
Outstanding
Adjustment at
Outstanding inrespectof Adjustment  31.12.2011
Exercise at share in respect of and
Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.1.2011  subdivision bonusissue  31.12.2012
R-ZF-——-%
T=A
=+-8K
—E-C-F
R=B—-% t=A
—-A-H e BB =+-H
R A i e B RATE b ARAE R AT
HK$
BT
Directors:
Ex:
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 t0 21.12.2013
ZEEME-RAZ1RA “EEME-ATHRZE
“FT-—=#+-A-1-H 2109 17,350,000 69,400,000 8,675,000 95,425,000
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 to 21.12.2013
ZEEAERATHA ZEERERATRAZE
“Z-=f#+-A=-+-H 1.742 9,000,000 36,000,000 4,500,000 49,500,000
26,350,000 105,400,000 13,175,000 144,925,000
Employees:
E&:
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 10 21.12.2013
“ZTME-_AZT/5H “ZEME_AT+HRE
—E-=F+ZAZ1—H 2109 25625000 102,500,000 12,812,500 140,937,500
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 t0 21.12.2013
ZZE 5 AThA ZEERFAATABE
—E-=F+-A-1+—H 1.742 4,500,000 18,000,000 2,250,000 24,750,000
30,125,000 120,500,000 15,062,500 165,687,500
56,475,000 225,900,000 28,237,500 310,612,500
Exercisable at the end of the years 4R AJ77{ 310,612,500
Weighted average exercise price ~ METFHTEH(E HK$2.02787C  HKS2.02/87  HK$2.02/87L HK$2.027 7T
No share options were granted, exercised and lapsed REBE-E——FR-_FT—F+=
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. R=+—RIFEHEBREERL -
TSI
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35.

36.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

All of the Group’s Hong Kong employees are required to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group is required
to contribute 5%, while the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their salaries to the scheme to the maximum
of HK$1,000 per month for the first 5 months in 2012 and
increased to the maximum of HK$1,250 per month effective
from 1 June 2012 (2011: HK$1,000 per month) for each
employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of the salaries of their employees to the state-managed
retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At the end of the reporting period, government grants of
HK$22,854,000 (2011: HK$25,020,000) were included in trade
and other payables, to subsidise the acquisition of property,
plant and machinery for scientific research development. The
amount has been treated as deferred income and will be
transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the relevant
assets. This policy resulted in a credit to profit or loss in the
current year of HK$2,329,000 (2011: HK$1,762,000).

Incentive subsidies of HK$10,347,000 (2011: HK$16,070,000)
have been received in the current year to encourage the
operation of a PRC subsidiary for the development on export
sales and advance technology. There were no specific
conditions attached to the grants and, therefore, the Group
recognised the grants in profit or loss upon receipt.

35.

36.

RIREAIEE
AEE 2 BEBREASMBHILATE

TETEl e REEAELS%HR  MEETN
BARZTEELESFMo% 2 MK RZF
——FEhEA BREEBCEAHZES
B1,00087L 0 B -_E——F, A —Hit
BARSHEAREEINE250FT(ZF——
F 5 A1,00087T) °

RETEBBEREAMN - EKELRA
A B B R MR RR A EEL R E RN E R
BHME T ED L 2] - REBBEARE
MBI R 2 EEE AR SEL AR

=
e

N2 g5p= 3

RREER - AEBBEEHREYE - K
B Ri#as AR EE 2 BFERN
22,854,000 7T ( =& — — £ : 25,020,000
BIL) P AT BRIE R E AL B RUIE - 3%
BC AR AR IR A IR IR E 2 Al 5
FHRBE S I82s o BB BAEE R AR
W2 e F 2,329,008 L (—FE——4F:
1,762,000 7T) °

RERWRBGT R B E QA E
SMERE RSCERMI ENERME LN
& Bp 2 8510,347,00008 o( — & — — F ¢
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e - Bt - ARERUR RSB 2 T R
RRRh o
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEALRS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key AFEEEREMEFBEEERE 2 HB0M
management during the year were as follows: T
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term benefits HHIE A 25,097 22,283
Post-employment benefits B 1248 T 110 108
Share-based payments VAR 17 A ERE S 14,838 -
40,045 22,391
The remuneration of directors and key executives are EENTETHAEBZEMN ' HTHEES
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to ZE[AARBRETISBHBET -

the performance of individuals and market trends.
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. XRFEEHBARER
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully
incorporation or paid ordinary Proportion
registration/ share capital/ ownership interest
operation registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary Ry ERTRARLER FARREL Principal activities
WEARER e RE/HEMERER FrERRRLA TERHE
2012 2011
—%--F Z%—F
Truly Electronics Manufacturing Hong Kong HK$1,000,010 100% 100%  Trading of electronic calculators and
Limited BB 1,000,010 7 electronic components
BEHEFARLA ETHERRETIHES
Truly Electrical Products Company Hong Kong HK$200 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited i 20057 &
ENEEARAA
Truly Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$872,894 100% 100%  Trading of electronic components
EMNIZERRA &R 872,894 7T ETHES
Truly Instrument Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Trading of electric tooth brush and
EHERERAR B 10057 health care products
EHTRREAREERES
Truly Semiconductors Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of LCD products
BH+ERARAR BE 1,000,000/ 7 ReEBETEERES
Truly Opto-electronics Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 85.4% 100%  Trading of compact camera models
EHXBERAA Bk 10007 and touch panel
HRRREEREERERES
Truly (USA) Inc. United States of America  US$20,000 100% 100%  Marketing of electronic calculators
*E 20,000%TT EREIEL Ak
ENEFERAR" PRC US$38,964,115 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic
m 38,964, 115% T caloulators and electronic
components
REBTHERRE Tl
ERIFEEBRAR" PRC 1S$498,300,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of LCD products
ﬁP 498,300,000% 7T RERRRETSER
EHESCLE)ERAR" PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of electric toothbrush
i 1,000,000% 7T and health care products

HEEYTRIRBAARRER
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. XRFEEMNBARER &)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully
incorporation or paid ordinary Proportion
registration/ share capital/ ownership interest
operation registered capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary BRI AR BERTRAREER FAREEL Principal activities
WEARER 3 RE/HAREREE FrERERLA TEEH
2012 2011
=%--F —%—F
ERXECLR)ERAF PRC 1US$49,620,500 85.4% 100%  Manufacture of compact
i 49,620,500% 7T camera modle and touch panel
SENRRREARBIRER
EHIZCLE)BRAR PRC HK$3,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic
i 3,000,00077C component
HET T
{EMBROUR)BRAR" PRC US$35,750,000 100% 100%  Inactive
H 35,750,000 % &
* wholly foreign owned enterprise ) ﬁl\@ﬁﬁﬁii .
# subsequently dissolved on 13 January 2013 ¢ HER-_ZE—=F—A+=AF%
Except for Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited and Truly BREFMETHRAR &TFUW*(USA) Inc. 5 -
(USA) Inc., all subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. FIAKE AR R ARAIRERA
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at RZF-—ZFRZF——FF+A=1+—H
v = JN= =y
31 December 2012 and 2011 or at any time during the years. SKEFE NS - 58 A B R AR E
BRZEBES
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RESULTS E5
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-BLEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“EE\F ZETHhNE C"E-TF "E——% CZZ-Zf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FEL FEL TEL FHT
Revenue e 5,669,274  5804,184  7,735711 10503988 12,374,379
Cost of sales HERA (49733000  (4976,090)  (6,825,125)  (9,194,294)  (10,817,526)
Gross profit ES] 695,974 828,094 910586 1,309,694 1,556,853
Other income Hipde A 86,476 25,587 37,937 49,754 51,717
Other gains and losses Hhiags (45,05) (101,840) (36,768) (25,591) 19,185
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At &R B FIERBE
investments - - - (106,026) -
Administrative expenses THEH (190,902) (186,450) (231,653) (302,821) (365,210)
Distribution and seling expenses AERHEEER (140,422) (110,302) (147,524) (188,554) (206,107)
Finance costs HHER (67,015) (46,643) (43,414) (65,110) (72,646)
Profit before tax FiAns A 339,058 408,446 489,164 671,346 983,792
Income tax expense Frs g (77,923) (101,113) (174,208) (290,587) (267,833)
Profit for the year RERHT 261,135 307,333 314,956 380,759 715,959
Attributable to; IATALER
Equity holders of the Company RRREZEEA 261,121 307,333 314,956 380,759 710,261
Non-controlling interest E 14 - - - 5,698
261,135 307,333 314,956 380,759 715,959
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAME
At 31 December
Rt=B=t-H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—ZTN\F CZETNF ZE-%F CZT—F CZE--&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET TR TET
Total assets BESE 6,560,209 6,659,801 7915016 10,098,832 11,587,162
Total liabilities #waE 3,314,104)  (3,175,747)  (3,964,611)  (5,702,030)  (6,446,875)
Equity attrbutable to equity holders A2\ AJHER5 1A A B R
of the Company 30246105 3484054 3950405 4396802 5,140,287
Non-controlling interest SRR 62) (62) - - (163,048)
3,246,043 3483992 3,950,405 4,396,802 4,977,239
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Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period includes:

BREARANERE

HIR 2 SRR 2 BR B

2012 2011
=F—=F FT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Investments in subsidiaries B AR E 81,700 81,700
Amount due from a subsidiary FEULHT B A FIF A 620,314 610,522
Other assets HEaEE 2,224 791
704,238 693,013
Total liabilities N =k (42,030) (28,177)
662,208 664,836
Share capital R& AR 55,295 55,361
Reserves HiE 606,913 609,475
662,208 664,836
Share capital and Reserves of the Company: AR aE) 2 RS Rl 1
Share Capital
Share Share options Special redemption  Retained
capital premium* reserve reserve’ reserve profits Total
BE  ROBE* BRERE RHAREG EAERREE REOEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THIL THTL TR FAT FHT THL
At 1 January 2011 R-T——%—F—H 50,327 554,168 10,000 17,410 82 34,741 666,728
Profit for the year KEFGH - - - - - 108,807 108,807
Issue of shares upon exercise R TER
in share options BT 1 21 - - - - 22
Bonus issue of shares BATHLRL 5,033 (5,033) - - - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution #2572k 2 I%& - - - - - (10,721) (110,721
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%+=-f
=+—H 55,361 549,156 10,000 17,410 82 32,827 664,836
Profit for the year REZHF| - - - - - 208,563 208,563
Dividends recognised as distribution #3257 & 2 I% & - - - - - (207,489)  (207,489)
Shares repurchased and cancelled BRI K 2 i 85D (66) (3,636) - - 66 (66) (3,702)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——%F+-A
=t+—H 55,295 545,520 10,000 17,410 148 33,835 662,208

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the

Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and

provided that immediate following the distribution or paying dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between the
net book values of the underlying assets of the Company’s subsidiaries
acquired at the date on which the shares of these companies were acquired
by the Company, and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisitions.
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